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To the Shareholders of

United Insurance Company

(Public Shareholding Limited Company)
Amman - Jordan

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of United Insurance Company (the Company), which
comprise the statement of financial position as at December 31, 2021, and the statement of
profit or loss and other comprehensive income, statement of changes in equity and statement
of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the financial statements, including a
summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements present fairly, in all material respects,
the financial position of the Company as at December 31, 2021, and its financial performance
and its cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with International Financial Reporting
Standards (IFRSs).

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing. Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the "Auditor's Respansibilities
for the Audit of the Financial Statements section” of our report. We are independent of the
Company in accordance with the International Ethics Standards Board for Accountants’ Code of
Ethics for Professional Accountants together with the other ethical requirements that are
relevant to our audit of the Company’s financlal statements in Jordan, and we have fulfilled our
other ethical responsibilities. We belleve that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters, in our professional judgment, were of most significant matters in our audit
of the financial statements of the current year. These matters were addressed in the context of
our audit of the financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we
do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

We have fulfilled the responsibilities described in the Auditor's responsibilities for the audit of
the financial statements section of our report, including in relation to these matters.
Accordingly, our audit included the performance of procedures designed to respond to our

~ assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements. The results of

our audit procedures, including the procedures performed to address the matters below,
provide the basis for our audit opinion on the accompanying financial statements.
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A description was provided on how to examine each of the matters referred to below in the

audit procedures:

Key audit matter

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

Technical Provisions

As at 31 December 2021, the
Company had technical reserves of
D 17,9 million, which Includes
claims incurred but not reported
(IBNR) and other technical
reserves.

The Company uses a range of
actuarial methodologies to estimate
these claims. This requires
significant judgements to be
applied and estimates to be made,
for example inflation rates, claims

development patterns and
interpretations of regulatory
requirements.

The measurement of technical

reserves is a key judgmental area
for management given the level of
subjectivity inherent in estimating
the impact of claim events that

have occurred for which the
ultimate outcome remains
uncertain.

We have determined that this area
s a key audit matter due to the
significance of the amounts
involved and of the level of
significant judgements applied by
management in the process for
determination of gross outstanding
claims.

Refer to note x in the finandal
statements for more details
relating to this matter,

We evaluated the design and tested the
implementation and operating effectiveness of key
controls over management’s processes for claims
processing, including controls over the completeness
and accuracy of the claim estimates recorded.

We performed substantive tests on the amounts
recorded for a sample of caims nctified and paid,
including comparing the outstanding claims amount to
appropriate source documentation to evaluate the
valuation of outstanding claims.

We assessed the competence, skills, independence and
objectivity of management’s expert and reviewed the
terms of engagement between the expert and the
Company to determine if the scope of their work was
sufficlent for audit purposes.

We assessed the completeness and accuracy of the
data used in calculating the technical provisions.

We compared the actuary's current year report to the
prior year to assess that there are no material
differences in the estimates and assumptions adopted.
We assessed any differences noted (in case of any) in
the estimates and assumptions to determine if these
differences were reasonable.

We utilized our internal actuarial specialists lo assess
the valuation methodologies applied and estimates
applied by the Actuary in his calculation of the
technical reserves.

We performed test of details and analytical procedures
on a selected sample to verify the completeness and
accuracy of calculating the technical provisions of the
Company and the extent to which these provisions are
consistent with the results reached by the actuaries of
the Company.

We assessed the disclosures in the finandal
statements relating to this matter against the
requirements of IFRSs.
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Other Matter
The accompanying financial statements are a translation of the statutory financial statements
in the Arabic language to which reference should be made.

Other Information

Management is responsible for other Information which comprises information in the annual
report excluding the financial statements and the independent auditor's report thereon.
Furthermore, we expect the annual report to be made available to us after the date of our
audit report. Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover other informaticn, and we
do not express any form of assurance or conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information when it becomes available to us. In doing so, we consider whether the other
information is materially Inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained
in the audit, or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the
Financial Statements

Management Is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements
in accordance with IFRSs, and for such internal control as management determines necessary
to enable the preparation of financlal statements that are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern, and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to
liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are respensible for overseeing the Company's financial
reporting process.

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our cbjectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an
auditor's report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is @ high level of assurance,
but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs will always detect a
material misstatement when |t exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
considered material if, individually or In the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected lo
influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with ISA's, we exercise professional judgement and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

» Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our opinicn, The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting
from fraud is higher than the one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omission, misrepresentations, or the override of
internal control.

» Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of internal control.

» Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management.
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»  Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of
accounting, and based on the audit evidenced obtained, whether a material
uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on
the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the
related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are Inadequate,
to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtalned up
to the date of our auditor's report. However, future events or conditions may cause
the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

» Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

%  Obtain sufficient and appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information
of the entities or business activities within the Company to express an opinion on the
financial statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision and
performance of the Company’s audit. We remain solely respansible for our audit
opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the
planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant
deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with
relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and communicate with them all
relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence,
and where applicable, related safeguard procedures.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine these
matters of most significance in the audit of the financial statements of the current year, and
are therefore, the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor's report unless
law and regulations preclude public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare
circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be cornmunicated in our report because
the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public
Interest benefits of such communication.

Report on Legal and Other Regulatory Requirements

The Company maintains proper accounting records that are consistent, in all material respects,
with the financial statements, and we recommend that the General Assembly of Shareholders
approve the financial statements.

Amman — Jordan
February 28, 2022

itte & Touche (M.E) - Jordan
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UNITED INSURAMCE COMPANY
(A PUBLTC SHAREHOLDTNG LTMITED COMPANY]
AMMAN = JORDAN
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL FOSTTION

December 31,

ASSETS Hote 2021 2020
Invastmants: D i1
Deposits at banks 3 8,310,717 9,445,592
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss 4 125,322 151,356
Financial assets at falr value through other comprehensive Income 5 5,429,328 4,631,716
Financial assets at amortized cost (] 4,547 001 2,985,001
Investment property - nat 7 4,774,362 4 850 168

23,186,750 22,078,333

Cash on hand and at banks g 628,287 3,486,117
Cheques under collection g 2,014,578 1,827,342
Reaceivables - net 10 6,678,418 6,815,016
Ra-inzurance and local nsurance companies' accounts recelvables - net 11 351,384 &00,780
Deferred tax assets 3 637,293 B63,953
Property and equipment - net 13 4,653,506 4,205,570
Intangible assets - net 14 15,639 33,365
Other assels 15 2,188,027 652, B46
17,217,325 19,284,989

TOTAL ASSETS 40,404,075 41,363,322

LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY

LIABILITIES
Unearned premiums provision - net 6,728,139 6,277,497
Claims provislan - net 11,081,144 11,462,580
Mathematical provision 15 50,368 40,712
Total Insurance Contracts Liabilities 17,859,651 17,780,789
Fayables 17 2,372,209 1,660,699
Re-insurance and local insurance companies’ accounts payable 18 3,031,891 5,571,761
Accried expenses and varlous provisions 19 176,127 174,479
Provision for income tax 12 260,857 479,762
Cefarred t2x llabllities 12 20,804 26,864
DOther llabilities 20 153,527 264,335
TOTAL LIABILITIES 23,887,126 25,954,749
SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY
huthorized and pald-up capltal 21 8,000,000 2,000,000
lssuance premium 21 41,507 41,507
Stetutory reserve 232 2,004,000 2,000,000
Financial assets valuation reserve - net 23 {208,460} (898,691)
Rotained earnings 24 6,783,902 6,261,757
Total Sharcholders' Equity 16,516,949 15,404,573
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND SHAREHCULDERS' EQUITY 40,404,075 41,363,322
Chairman of the Board of Directors rel Manager

THE ACCOMPANYING NOTES CONSTITUTE AN INTEGRAL PART OF THESE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SHOULD BE READ WITH THEM AND WITH THE ACCOMPANYING ALUDITORS' REPORT,

T 1.



UNITED INSURANCE COMPANY

(A PUBLIC SHAREHOLDING LTMITER COMPANY)
AMMAN - JORDAN

STATEMENT OF PROFLT OR LOSS

Revenue:
Gross written premiums - general Insuranca
Gross written premiums - life
Less: Re-Insurers’ share - general insurance
Reinsurance share premiums - |ife
MNet Written Premiums
Met change in unearnsd premiums reserve
Met change in mathematical reserve
Net Farned Written Pramiums
Commissions' revenue
Insurance policies issuance faes
Interest revenue
Met gain from financial assets and Investments
Cther revenue - net
Total Revenue

Claims, Losses and Expenses;
Paid claims - general insurance
Paid claims - life Insurance
Less: Claims Recoveries
Re-insurers' shara
Met paid claims
Net change In claims reserve
A&llocated employees' expenses
Allocated general and administrative expenses
Excess of loss premiums
Policies acquisition cost - commilsslons paid
Other expenses related to underwriting
Net Claims Costs

Unallocated employees' expenses
Depreciation and amortization
Unallocated general and adminfstrative expenses
Expected credit loss
Other expenses
Total Expenses

Profit for the year before Tax
Income tax expense

Profit For The Year
Esrnings per Share for the Year

Chaimman of the Board of Directors

For the Year Ended
December 31,

Nate 2021 2020
D il »]
22,150,163 21,456,819
340,833 312,452
7,984,429 6,728,552
241,322 234 607
14,265,245 14,806,112
(450,542) 1,140,669
{9,656) 40,861
13,804,947 15,987,642
502,400 462,761
824,580 778,824
25 638,003 605,314
26 263,744 161,544
27 16,660 49,710
16,050,334 18,045,795
24,375,722 16,752,973
278,661 200,150
1,650,001 1,215,393
11,982,540 4,518,132
11,021,842 11,219,598
(361,435) 693,332
28 1,243,890 1,319,395
29 408,447 531,029
285,983 116,275
580,454 494,694
424 847 452,244
13,591,028 14,626,567
I8 175,657 186,824
380,700 382,557
a5 101,612 132,757
a0 100,000 502,000
31 30,000 40,835
787,969 1,244,973
1,671,337 1,974,255
12 [349,192) (472,727)
1,322,145 1,501,528
32 /165 -f188

General Manager

THE ACCOMPANYING NOTES CONSTITUTE AN INTEGRAL PART OF THESE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AND SHGULD BE READ WITH THEM AMD WI1TH THE ACCOMPANYING AUDITORS' REPORT.
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UNTTED TNSURANCE COMPANY

(A PUBLIC SHAREHOLDING LIMITED COMPANY)

AMMAN - JORDAN

STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

For the Year Ended

December 31,
2021 2020
o 1D

Profit for the year 1,322,145 1,501,528
Items that will nat be transferred to the statement of profit or loss in future:
Change In the valuztion reserve of Ninancial assets at fair value through

statament of other comprehensive Income - nat 590,231 {286,810)

Total Comprehensive Income 1,912,376 1,214.718

THE ACCOMPANYING NOTES CONSTITUTE AN INTEGRAL PART OF THESE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SHOULD BE READ WITH THEM AND WITH THE ACCOMPANYING AUDITORS' REPCRT,
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UMITED INSURANCE COMPANY
{A PUBLIC SHAREHOLDING LIMITED COMPANY)
AMMAN - JORDAN
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
Prafit for the year before tax
Adjustments to non-monetary items:
Depreciation and amortization
Expected credit loss - net
Provislon for other liabilities - net
Change In the falr value of financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
Interest income
Unearned premium reserve - not
Mathematical reserve - net
Claims reserve - net
Cash Flows from Operating Activities before Changes In Working Capital Items
{Increase) Decrease in checks under collection
Decrease {Increase) In receivables
Increase in rea-insurance and local Insurance companies' acoounts receivable
{Increase) Decrease In other assets
Increase {Decrease) in payables
(Decrease) Increase in re-insurance and local insurance companies’ accounts payabie
{(Decrease) fn other Habilities
Met Cash Flows (Used in) From Operating Activities before Provislons and Tax Paid
Frovisions paid
Income tax pald
Met Cazh Flows (Used In) From Operating Activities

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES:
Decrease in deposits at banks
{Purchase) Maturity of financlal assets at amortized cost
Praceeds (Purchase) of financial assets at falr value through other comprehensive Income
{Purchase] of property and equipment
(Purchase} of intangible assets
Interest Income recaeived
Met Cash From (Used in) Investing Activities

CASH FLOWS FROM FINAWCING ACTIVITIES:
Dividends distributed to shareholders
Met Cash (used in) Financing Activitles
Nat Increase in Cash
Cash and cash equivalents - beginning of the year
Cash and Cash Equivalents - End of the Year

For the Year Ended
December 31,

fote 2021 2020
i]#] n
1,671,337 1,974,255
380,700 382 557
ki 100,000 502,001
19 153,167 215,127
26 26,034 (2,217)
(638,003) {605,314)
450,642 1,140,662}
9.656 (40,861)
(381,435) 653,332
1,772,088 1,971,110
(B7,238) 1,207,160
36,600 {671,037
249,396 914 808
{1,535,181) 20,502
711,510 (1,310,042)
{2,539,870) 2,393,322
[104,868) {18,372}
[1,497,551) 4,507 451
19 (151,519) (282,893)
1z (598,820) (399,338)
{2,247,890) 3,824 614
4,042,384 337,757
{1,562,000) [1,585,000)
797,612 98,644
(14,316} (9,182}
14 (10,788) -
638,003 605,314
4,490,885 (453,467)
{800,000) -
(800, 0007 -
5,306,191 2,871,147
2,242,995 2,435,044
32 7,549,186 5,306,191

THE ACCOMPANYING NOTES COMNSTITUTE AN INTEGRAL FART GF THESE FINANCIAL

STATEMENTS AND SHOULD BE READ WITH THEM AND WITH THE ACCOMPANYING AUDITORS' REPORT.
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UNITED INSURANCE COMPANY

(A PUBLIC SHAREHOLDING LIMITED COMPANY)

AMMAN - JORDAN

STATEMENT OF UNMDERWRITING REVEMUES FOR. LIFE INSURANCE ACTIVITIES

Written Premiums:
Direct premium
Re-Insurance inward premium

Gross Written Premiums
Less: Foreign re-insurance premiums

Local re-insurance premiums

Met Written Premiums

Add: Mathematical reserve - beginning of the yesar

Less: Re-insurers' share - beginning of the year

Net Mathematical Reserve - beginning of the year
Less: Mathematical reserve - end of the Year
Re-Insurers' share - end of the year
Net mathematical reserve - end of the vear
Met Change in Mathematical Reserve

Net Earmmed Revenue from Written Premiums

THE ACCOMPANYING NOTES CONSTITUTE AN INTEGRAL PART OF THESE FINANCIAL

Far the Year Ended December 31,

2021 2020
0 D

340,833 312,452
340,833 312,452
241,322 234,607

99,511 77.845
150,712 123,475
110,000 41,902

40,712 81,573
161,832 150,712
111,464 110,000

50,368 40,712
{9,656) 40,861

B%,855 118,706

STATEMENTS AND SHOULD BE READ WITH THEM AND WITH THE ACCOMPANYING AUDITORS' REPORT.



LUNITED INSURANCE COMPANY

{A PUBLIC SHAREHOLDING LIMITED COMPANY)
AMMAN - JORDAN
STAT EP LIFE INSURANCE ACTIVITIES
For the Year Ended
December 31,
2021 2020
B[ »] 1D

Faid clalms 278,661 200,150
Less: Foreign re-insurers’ share 231,050 150,778

MNet Paid Claims 47,611 49,372
Add: Reported dalms reserve - end of the year 160,644 392,674

Unreported claims reserve - end of the year 10,000 10,000

Less: Re-insurers' share 121,355 325,409

Met Outstanding Claims Reserve - End of the Year 49 289 77,265
Less: Reported clalms reserve - beginning of the year 392,674 10,000
Unreported claims reserve - beginning of the year 10,000 369,442
Less: Re-insurers’ share 325,409 300,787
Met Claims Reserve - Beginning of the Year 77,265 78,655
Met Change In Claims Provision {27,976) {1,390]

Met Paid Claims Cost 19,635 47,982

THE ACCOMPANYING NOTES COMNSTITUTE AN INTEGRAL PART OF THESE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SHOULD BE READ WITH THEM AND WITH THE ACCOMPANYING
AUDITORS' REPORT.
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UNITED INSURANCE COMPANY

(A PUBLIC SHAREHOLDING LIMITED COMPANY)

AMMAN - JORDAN

STATEMENT OF UNDERWRITING PROFIT FOR LIFE INSURANCE ACTIVITIES

For the Year Ended

December 31,

2021 2020
5] 10

Net earned revenue from written premiums H9,855 118,706
Less: Net paid claims cost 19,633 47,582
70,222 | 70,724
Add: Received commissions 71 14,167
Insurance policies insurance fees 7,816 7,217
Total Revenue 7.BB7 21,384
Less: Polices acquisition cost - coammission paid 4,814 1,022
Other expenses related to underwriting accounts 15,807 18,348
Cther expenses related to underwriting (1,738 12,680
Total Expenses 15,883 32,050
58,226 60,058

THE ACCOMPANYING NOTES CONSTITUTE AN INTEGRAL PART OF THESE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SHOULD BE READ WITH THEM AND WITH THE ACCOMPANYING AUDITORS' REPORT.
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UNITED INSURANCE COMPANY

(A PUBLIC SHAREHOLDING LIMITED COMPANY)
AMMAN - JORDAN

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION FOR LIFE INSURANCE ACTIVITIES
December 31,
ASSETS 2021 2020
o 1
Deposits at banks 400,000 100,000
Total Investments 400,000 100,000
Accounts receivable 100,661 111,350
Re-insurance companies' accounts recelvable 116,717 175,519
Property and equipment 21 31
TOTAL ASSETS 617,399 386,300
LIABILITIES AND HEAD OFFICE'S EQUITY
LIABILITIES
Accounts payable 48,345 13,051
Re-insurance companies’ Account Payable 276,993 296,609
TECHNICAL RESERVES
Claims reserve - net 49,289 77,265
Mathematical reserve - net 50,368 40,712
Total Technical Reserves 99,657 117,977
TOTAL LIABILITIES 424,995 427,637
HEAD OFFICE'S EQUITY
Head Office's current account 134,178 (100,755)
Net Written Profit 58,226 50,058
Surplus in Head Office's Equity 192,404 (40,737)
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND HEAD OFFICE'S EQUITY 617,399 366,200

THE ACCOMPANYING NOTES CONSTITUTE AN INTEGRAL PART OF THESE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SHOULD BE READ WITH THEM AND WITH THE ACCOMPANYING

AUDITCORS' REPORT.
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UNITED INSURANCE COMPANY
A PUBLIC SHAREHOLDING LI ANY
AMMAN — JORDAN
NOTES TO FINANCTIAL STATEMENTS

1. General
a. United Insurance Company was established in 1972 and registered as a lordanian

Public Shareholding Limited Company under Number (74) accerding to the Companies
Law and its amendments. Moreover, United Tnsurance Company was merged with
Egyptian Orlent Insurance Company and New India Insurance Company in Jordan. The
merger took effect from the beginning of 1988 and the Company resulting from the
merger (United Insurance Company) has become the general success of the Company.
In addition, more capital adjustments were made, the last of which was during the
year 2008, so that authorized, paid-up capital became ID 8 million, divided intc 8
million shares at a par value of JD 1 each.

The Company’s address is Zahran Street, Building No. (188), P.O. Box 7521 - 11118
Amman, Jordan,

The Company’s objective is conducting all types of insurance, including life insurance.

b. The accompanying financial statements were approved by Board of Directors in their
meeting held December 17,2022 and they are subject to the approval of the General
Assembly of Shareholders.

2. A

Basis of Preparation

The financial statements have been prepared according to the standards issued
by the International Accounting Standards Board interpretations issued by the
International Financial Reporting Standards Committee enacted local laws and
regulations; as well as the forms prescribed by the Jordanian Insurance
Commission.

The financial statements have been prepared according to the historical cost
convention except for the financial assets at fair value through prefit or loss and
financial assets at fair value through statement of other comprehensive income
and financial liability, which are stated at fair value in the financial statements.

The Jordanian Dinar is the functional and reporting currency of the financial
staternents.

The accounting policies adopted for the current year are consistent with those
applied in the year ended December 31, 2020, except for what is mentioned in
Note (42).

The following are the significant accounting policies:

Sector Information

- The business sector represents a set of assets and operations that jointly
provide products and services subject to risks and returns different from
those of other business sectors. These risks and returns are measured
according to the reports used by the Company’s Chief Executive Officer and
Key decision maker,

= The geographic sector relates to the providing products and services in a

defined economic environment subject to risks and returns different from
those of other economic environments.
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Financial Instruments

Initial recognition and measurement:

Financial assets and liabilities are recognized in the Company's statement of financial
position when the Company becomes a party to the contractual provisions.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at fair value. Moreover,
transaction costs directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial assets and
liabilities are added to the fair value of the financial assets or financial liabilities, or
deducted from them, where necessary, at initial recognition. The transaction costs directly
attributable to the acquisition of financial assets or financial liabilities at fair value through
profit or loss are recognized directly in the statement of profit and loss.

If the transaction price is different from the fair value at initial recognition, the Company
treats this difference as follows:

e If fair value is determined at an active market price for identical assets or liabilities or
based on a valuation method that uses only observable Inputs In the market, the
difference in profit or loss is recognized on initial recognition (i.e., gain or loss on the
first day).

= In all other cases, fair value is adjusted to the transaction price (that is, the first day
gain or loss wlill be deferred by including it in the initial carrying amount of the asset or
liability).

After initial recognition, the deferred gain or loss will be taken to the statement of profit or
loss on a rational basis, only to the extent that a change in factor (including time) is taken
by the market participants when pricing the asset or liability or when this instrument is
derecagnized,

Financial Assets

Initial recognition

All financial assets are recognized on the trade date when the purchase or sale of a financial
asset under a contract requires the terms cf delivery of the financial asset within a time
frame determined by the relevant market, Moreover, the financial asset is initially measured
at fair value plus transaction costs except for those financial assets classified as at fair value
through the statement of profit or loss. Transaction costs directly attributable to the
acquisition of financial assets designated at fair value through profit or loss are recognized
in the statement of profit or loss.

=) urement

Measurement of all recognized financial assets within the scope of IFRS S requires
subsequent measurement at amortized cost or fair value based on the entity's business
model for managing financial assets and their contractual cash flow characteristics.

Specifically:

« Financial instruments held in the business mode| for collecting contractual cash flows
with contractual cash flows that are only principal and interest payments on the
principal outstanding, and are subsequently measured at amortized cost; and

e Financial instruments held in the business model for beoth collecting contractual cash
flows and selling debt instruments with contractual cash flows that are only principal
and interest payments on the principal outstanding and are subsequently measured at
fair value through other comprehensive incoma.

« All other financing instruments (such as debt instruments managed at fair value or held
for sale) and equity investments are subsequently measured at fair value through the
statement of profit or loss,

=18 -



However, the Company may, after initial recognition of the financial asset, may make an
irrevocable choice/designation concerning the financial asset on an individual basis, as
follows:

e« The Company may make an irrevocable choice to Include in other comprehensive
inceme the subsequent changes In the fair value of the equity investment not held for
trading or potential replacement recognized by the acquirer within the business
combinations to which IFRS 3 applies; and

The Company may irrevocably determine the financial instruments that fulfill the standards
of amortized cost or fair value through other comprehensive income and are measured at
fair value through the statement of profit or loss if it significantly eliminates or reduces the
accounting mismatch (referred to as the fair value option).

Debt Instruments at Amortized Cost or at Fair Value through Comprehensjve Income

The Company evaluates the classification and measurement of the financial asset based on
the contractual cash flow characteristics and the Company’s business madel for asset
management,

For an asset classified at amortized cost or at fair value through comprehensive income, its
contractual terms should result in cash flows that are only principal and interest payments
on the principal outstanding.

For the purpose of testing the principal and interest payments on the principal outstanding,
the asset is the fair value of the financial asset at initial recognition. This principal amount
may change over the life of the financial asset (for example, If there is a principal
repayment). Interest consists of the allowance for the time value of meney, the credit risk
associated with the original amount outstanding over a given period of time, and other basic
lending options and risks, as well as the profit margin. An assessment of the principal and
interast payments is made for the principal amount outstanding in the currency In which the
financial asset is evaluated.

Contractual cash flows represent the principal and interest payments on the principal
outstanding and are consistent with the underlying funding arrangement. Contractual terms
involving exposure to risks or fluctuations in contractual cash flows unrelated to the
underlying financing arrangement, such as exposure to changes In equity prices or
commodity prices, do not result In contractual cash flows that are only fram principal and
interest payments. A financial asset granted or acquired may &lso be the primary financing
arrangement regardless of whether it is a loan in its legal form.

Evaluating the Business Model

Evaluation of business model for the management of financial assets is essential for the
classification of financial assets. Moreover, the Company defines business models at a level
that reflects how the groups of financial assets are managed together to achieve a particular
business objective. In this regard, the Company’s business model does not depend cn the
management’s intentions concerning an individual instrument, and therefore the business
model Is evaluated at a group level and not on an instrument-by-instrument basis.

The Company adopts more than one business model to manage its financial instruments
that reflect how the Company manages its financial assets to generate cash flows. In
addition, the Company's business models determine whether cash flows will result from the
collection of contractual cash flows, the sale of financial assets, or both.

_19-



The Company takes into account all relevant information available when conducting an
evaluation of the business model, However, this assessment is not done on the basis of
scenarios that the Company does not expect to occur reascnably, such as the so-called
“worst case” or "stress state" scenarios. The Company also takes into account all available
relevant evidence such as:

« The portfolio stated policies and objectives and the application of those policies and
whether the management strategy focuses on obtaining a contractual revenue,
maintaining a specific profit rate, matching the period of financial assets with the period
of financial liabilities that finance those assets, or achieving cash flows through the sale
of assets,

» How to evaluate the performance of the business model and financial assets held in this
business model and to report to key management personnel;

» Risks affecting the performance of the business model (and the financial assets of that
model), in particular the manner in which such risks are managed; and

= How to compensate business managers (for example, whether compensation is based
on the fair value of the assets managed cr on the contractual cash flows received).

Upon initial recognition of the financial asset, the Company determinas whether the newly
recognized financial assets are part of an existing business model or whether they reflect
the beginning of a new business model. The Company evaluates its business models in each
reporting period to determine whether business models have changed since the prior
period.

When a debt instrument measured at fair value through comprehensive [ncome Is
derecognized, the cumulative gain / loss previously recognized in comprehensive income is
reclassifled as equity to the statement of profit or loss. On the other hand, for equity
investments measured at fair value through comprehensive income, the cumulative gain /
loss previously recognized in comprehensive income Is not subsequently reclassified Lo the
statement of profit or loss but transferred directly to equity.

Debt Instruments that are subsequently measured are carried at amortized cost or at fair
value through comprehensive income for impairment testing.

If the business model in which the Company retains financial assets changes, the financial
assets that have been affected are reclessified. The classification and measurement
requirements relating to the new class are effective from the first day of the first reporting
period after the change in the business model resulting in the reclassification of the
Company's financial assets. Changes In contractual cash flows are considered in the
accounting policy for the adjustment and disposal of the financial assets described below.

Impairment
The Company recognizes the expected credit loss provisions on the following financial
instruments that are not measured at fair value through Profit er Loss statement:

Balances and deposits with banks and financial institutions.
Recelvables and receivables from reinsurers,

Financial assets at amortized cost (debt instruments).
Checks under collection

Mo impairment loss is recognized in equity instruments.

The Company calculates the impairment of financial statements using the simplified
method.

= o i



Defining Default

The definition of default Is very important in determining the expected credit loss. It is used
to measure the value of credit loss, because default is a component of the probability of
default that affects the measurement of credit losses.

Impairment of Financial Assets

The Company takes a provision for the expected credit losses on receivables, checks under
collection, and reinsurers’ receivable. The expected credit losses are updated on each
reporting date to reflect changes in creditworthiness since the initial recognition of the
relevant financial instrument,

The Company continuously records the expected credit losses over their lives as regards
receivables, checks under collection, and reinsurers’ receivable. Moreover, the expected
credit losses are estimated using a provsion matrix based on the Group's previous credit
loss experience and adjusted to the factors relating to debtors, general economic conditions,
and assessment of the current and future conditions at the reporting date, including the
time value of cash, as appropriate.

For all other financial assets, the Company recognizes the expected credit lasses over thair
lifetime If there has been a significant increase in credit risks since the initial recognition.
The expected credit loss over its life span represents the expected credit losses that will
arise from all probable defaults over the course of the expected lifetime of the financial
instrument.

Provision for & redit Losses

The Company has adopted the simplified method to recognize the expected credit losses
over their lifetime concerning receivables, checks under collection, and reinsurers’
receivable as permitted by IFRS 9. Accordingly, non-impaired receivables, checks under
collection, and reinsurers’ receivable that do nol contain a significant component of finance
have been classified within the second stage with the recognition of expected cradit losses

aver their lifetime.

A provision for the expected long-term credit loss of a financial instrument should be
recognized if the credit risk on that financial instrument increases substantially since the
initial recognition, and the expected credit loss is a potential weighted estimate of the
present value of the credit loss. This value is measured as the present value of the
difference between the cash flows due to the Company under the contract and the cash
flows that the Company expects to receive arising from the weighting of several future
economic scenarios, discounted at the effective interest rate of the asset.

The Company assesses whether there is an objective evidence of impairment on an
individual basis for sach asset with an individual value and collectively for other assets that
are not individually significant.

Provisions for loss of credit losses are presented as a reduction of the total carrying amount
of financial assets at amortized cost.

Adjustment a ition of Financi

An adjustment is made to the financial asset when the contractual terms that govern the
cash flows of a financial asset are renegotiated or otherwise modlified between the
initial recognition and and maturity of the financial asset. The adjustment affects the
amount and / or timing of the contractual cash flows either immediately or at a future date.

When a financial asset is adjusted, the Company assesses whether such an adjustment

results in derecognition. According to the Company's policy, the adjustment leads to
derecognition when it causes a significant difference in Lerms.
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If a financial asset is derecognized, the provision for the credit losses expected at
derscognition date is re-measured to determine the net carrying amount of the asset at that
date. The difference between the adjusted carrying amount and the fair value of the new
financial assets with the new terms will result in a gain or loss on derecognition.

When the contractual terms of a financial asset are madified, and the adjustment does not
result in derecagnition, the Company determines whether the credit risk of the financial
asset has increased significantly since the initial recognition by comparing:

s The probability of non-payment for the remaining period estimated on the basis of data
at initial recognition and original contractual terms; with

» The probability of non-payment for the remaining period at the reporting date based on
the maodified terms.

When the adjustment does not result in derecognition, the Company calculates the
adjustment gain / loss to compare the total carrying amount before and after the
adjustment (except for the expected credit loss provision). The Company then measures the
expected credit loss of the adjusted asset, as the expected cash flows arising from the
adjusted financial asset are included in the expected cash deficit from the original asset.

Derecognition of Financial Assets

The Company derecognizes a financial asset upon the completion of the contractua! rights
relating to the recelpt of the cash flows from the asset, or when the entity has transferred
the financial asset, together with all significant risks and rewards of ownership, to another
entity. If the Company does not transfer or retain substantially the risks and rewards of
ownership and continues to control the transferred asset, the Company recognizes its
remaining interest in the transferred asset and the related liabilities that the Company may
have to pay. If the Group retains substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of the
transferred asset, the Company continues to recognize the financial asset.

Upon derecognition of any financial asset measured at amortized cost, the difference
between the carrying amount of the asset and the consideration received or receivable is
recognized in the statement of profit or loss.

Write-off

The Company derecognizes the financial assets when there is information indicating that the
debtor is experiencing financial difficulties, and there is no realistic prabability of recovery,
for example. When the debtor has been placed under liquidation, has entered bankruptcy
proceedings, or where trade receivables age exceeds two years, whichever is earlier, The
Company may centinue to subject financial assets written off to collection procedures,
taking into account legal advice, where appropriate. Meanwhile, any recoveries are
recognized in the statement of profit or loss.

Financial Lizabiliti nd Equity Inst Issued by the C

Classification as debt or equity instruments

Debt and equity instruments are classified either as financial liabilities or as equity in
accordance with the substance of the contractual arrangements, the definitions of financial
liabilities, and the equity Instrument.

Equity Instruments
An equity instrument is defined as a contract that evidences ownership of the remaining

shares of an entity's assets after deducting all liabilities. The equity instruments issued are
recorded with the proceeds received net of the direct issue cost.
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Einancial Liabilitias

All financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortized cost using the effective yield
method or at fair value through prefit or loss. Financia! liabilities that are not (i) 2 potential
consideration for the acquiree in a business combination, (i) held for trading, or (lil}
designated at fair value through profit or loss, are subsequently measured at amertized cost
using the effective yield method.

Other accounts payable are initially classified as “financial liabilities” at fair value less
transaction costs, whereas they are subsequently measured at amortized cost using the
effective yield method. Interest expense is recognized on an effective yield basis except for
short-term liabilities if it is insignificant to recognize the return.

The effective vield method is the method of calculating the amortized cost of a financial
liabllity and allocating the expense over the period in question. The effective interest rate s
the rate that exactly discounts the expected future cash payments within the expected life
of the financlal obligation or, where appropriate, a shorter period,

Derecognition of Financlal Liabllities:

The Company derecognises financial liabilities when it is discharged from its abligations, or
when such obligations are canceled or expired. The difference between the carrying amount
of the derecognised financial liability and the consideration payable or payable is recognized
in profit or loss.

Foreign Exchange Gains and Lo

The carrying amount of financial assets recorded in a foreign currency is determined and

translated at the rate prevailing at the end of each reporting period. Specifically:

s For financial assets measured at amortized cost that are not part of a specific hedging
relationship, the currency exchange differences are recognized in the statement of
profit or loss; and

e For debt instruments measured at fair value through comprehensive income that are not
part of a specific hedging relationship, the exchange differences on the amortized cost of
the debt instrument are recognized In Profit or Loss statement. Other exchange
differences in comprehensive income are recognized in the revaluation reserve; and

« if financial liabilities are part of a portfolio managed on a fair value basis, in accordance
with a docurmented risk management or investment strategy; or

s if a derivative is included in the basic financial or nen-financial contract, and the
derlvative is not closely related to the basic contract.

Fair Val
Closing market prices (acquiring assets /selling liabilities) in active markets at the date of the
financial statements represent the fair value of traded financial derivatives.

In case declared market prices do not exist, some financial derivatives are not actively trading,
or the market is Inactive, fair value is estimated by one of several methods including the following:

- Comparison with the market value of ancther financial asset with similar terms and
conditions.

- Analysis of future cash flows and expected discounted cash flow based on a rate used for
similar instruments.

- Adoption of option pricing models.

The evaluation methods aim at providing a fair value reflecting expectations of the market,
and take into consideration market factors, risks, and future benefits when estimating the
derivatives value. Moreover, financial assets, the fair value of which cannot be reliably
measured, are stated at cost less any impairment.

Real Estate Investments

Real estate investments are stated at cost net of accumulated depreciation (excluding land).
Mareover, these investments are depreciated over their useful lives using the straight-line
method at an annual rate of 2%. In addition, Impairment in their value is taken to the
statement of profit or loss. The operating revenues or expenses of these investments are
included in the statement of profit or loss.
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Cash and Cash Equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash balances with banks and financial institutions maturing
within three months, less restricted balances.

Relnsurance Accounts

The Company carries out reinsurance operations with other Insurance and reinsurance
companies and Is exposed in many areas to certain levels of risk. Reinsurance operations
include the relative share, excess of loss agreements, facultative reinsurance and other
reinsurance forms that essentially cover all the types of insurance. Reinsurance contracts do
not exempt the Company from its obligations to policyholders. Failure of reinsurers to meet
their obligations may result in losses to the Company, and therefore, provisions are taken for
the uncollectible amounts. The recoverable amount of the reinsurer is estimated in a manner
commensurate with the Company's commitment to each claim.

Reinsurers' shares of insurance premiums and contributions, paid claims, lechnical
provisions, and all the rights and obligations resulting from reinsurance based on agreements
between the Company and reinsurers are accounted for on the accrual basis.

Impairment In Reinsurance Assels

In case there is any indication as to the impairment of the reinsurance assets of the Company,
which possesses the reinsured contracts, the Company reduces the present value of the
contracts and records the impairment loss in the statement of profit or less. The impairment is
only recognized in the following two cases:

1. There is objective evidence resulting from an event that took place after recording the
reinsurance assets confirming the Company's inability to recover all amounts according to the
conktracts terms,

2. The event has a reliably and clearly measurable effect on the amounts the Company will
recover from reinsurers,

Acquisition Costs of Insurance Policies

Acquisition costs represent the costs incurred by the Company against selling, underwriting,
or starting new insurance contracts. The acquisition costs are recorded in the statement of profit
or loss.

Pr and Equi

Prcperty and equipment are stated at cost nmet of accumulated depreciation and any
accumulated impairment. Moreover, property and equipment (except for land) are
depreciated, when ready for their intended use, according to the straight-line metheod aver
their estimated useful lives using the following annual rates. In addition, the depreciation
expense is recorded in the statement of profit or loss:

%
Office furniture and fixtures 10
Computers 20
Vehicles 15
Machinery and equipment 15
Electrical appliances 10
Buildings 2
Air-conditioning & cooling equipment 15
Fire alarm system 15
Elevators i5

Property and equipment under construction, for the Company's use, trading, or for purposes
not determined yet, are stated at cost net of accumulated impairment.

When the carrying amounts of property and equipment exceed their recoverable values,

assets are written down, and Impairment losses are recorded in the statement of profit or
loss.
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The useful lives of property and equipment are reviewed at the end cf each year. In case
the expected useful life Is different from what was determined before, the change in
estimate is recorded in the following years, being a change in estimate.

The gain or loss resulting from the disposal or derecognition of property and equipment,
representing the difference between the property and equipment sale proceeds and their
book value, are recorded In the statement of profit or loss.

Property and equipment are derecognized when disposed of or when there is no expected
future benefit from their use or disposal.

Mortgaged Financlal Assets
These are the financial assets mortgaged to other parties while the other party has the right
of disposal thereof (sale or re-mortgage). Evaluation of these assets continues to be
performed according to the accounting policies adopted for the evaluation of each according
to its original classification.

Intangible Assets
Intangible assets abtained through merger are stated at fair value on their acquisition date,
and the intangible assets obtained through other than merger are stated at cost.

Intangible assets represent computer systemns recorded at cost under a separate item in the
financial statements.

Intangible assets are classified according to their estimated lives: definite or indefinite.
Intangible assets with a definite useful life are amortized at a rate of 20% during that life,
and amortization is recorded in the statement of profit or loss. Intangible assets with
indefinite lives are reviewed for impairment at the date of the financial statements, and the
impairment is taken to the statement of profit or loss.

The value of intangible assets is tested for impairment at the date of the financial
statements and reduced if there are indications that their value has been impaired in case
the estimated recoverable amount of their cash-generating unit(s) is / are less than the
recorded amount of the cash generating unit(s). The impairment in value Is taken to the
statement of profit or loss.

Internally generated intangible assets are not capitalized by the Company but recorded in
the profit or loss statement in the same year.

The estimated life of those assets is reviewed, and any changes are made in the subsequent
periods.,

Any indications to the impairment of these financial assets are reviewed as of the date of
the financial statements,

Provisions

Provisions are recognized when the Company has an obligation on the date of the statement
of financial position as a result of past events, it is probable to settle the obligations, and a
reliable estimate of the obligation amount can be made.

Amounts recognized as provisions represent the best estimate of the amounts required to
settle the obligation as of the financial statements date, taking inte consideration risks and
the uncertainty relating to the obligation. When the provision amount is determined on the
basis of the expected cash flows for the settlement of the current obligation, its book value
represents the present value of these cash flows.

When it is expected that some or all the economic benefits required from other parties to

settle the provision will be recovered, the receivable is recognized within assets it receipt of
the compensations is certain, and their value can be reliably measured.
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Technical Reserves

Technical reserves are taken and maintained according to the regulations of the Insurance

Regulatory Commission as fellows:

1. The reserve for unearned premiums for general insurance activities Is calculated
according to the remaining days up to the expiry date of the insurance policy on the basis
of a 365-day per year, except for marine and land transport insurance for which the
provision is calculated on the basis of written premiums of the effective policies and in
accordance with the related laws and regulations on the date of the financial statements.

2. The reserve for reported claims is computed by determining the maximum total expected
costs for each claim on an individual basis.

3. Additional reserves for incurred but not repcrted claims are calculated based on the
Company's experience and estimates and with the corporation with the actuary expert.

4, The relatively large claims are studied separately, and the related provision Is bocked
based on the accredited loss adjustor report and based on the Company and actuary
expert’s experience and estimates.

5. The reserve for unearned premiums for life insurance activities is calculated based on the
Company's experience and estimates.

6. The mathematical reserve for life insurance policies is calculated based on the actuarial
gquations which are reviewed periodically by an independent actuary.

Provision for end- of- ice | i
The provision for employees' end-of-service indemnity is calculated in accordance with the
Company's policy that complies with the Jordanian Labor Law.

The annual compensation paid to employees leaving the service is recognized in the
provision for end-of-service indemnity when paid, and a provision for the liabilities incurred
by the Company concerning the employees’ end- of- service indemnity is taken in the
statement of profit or loss.

Income Tax

Income tax expenses represent accrued taxes and deferred taxes.

a. Accrued Taxes
Accrued tax expenses are accounted for on the basis of taxable income. Moreover,
taxable income differs from income declared in the statement of profit or loss since the
latter includes non-taxable revenue or tax expenses not deductible in the current year
but deductible in subsequent years, accumulated losses acceptable by the tax authorities,
as well as unallowable and non-taxable items.

Taxes are calculated on the basis of the tax rates prescribed accerding to the prevailing
laws, regulations, and instructions in Jordan,

b, Deferred Taxes
Deferred taxes are taxes expected to be paid or recovered as a result of temporary
timing differences between the value of the assets and liabilities in the financial
statements and the value of the taxable amount.

Deferred taxes are calculated according to the statement of financial position liability
method based on the tax rates expected to be applied at the tax settlement date or the
realization of the deferred tax assets.

The balances of deferred tax assets and liabilities are reviewed at the statement of
financial position date and reduced in case they are expected not to be utilized or are no
longer needed, wholly or partially.

Cost of Issuing or Purchasing of Own Shares

Costs arising from issuing or purchasing of own shares are taken to retained earnings (net
after taking into account the tax effect of these costs, if any). If issuance or purchase is
incomplete, these costs are recorded in the statement of profit or loss,
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Liability Adeguacy ‘_Egag;

The adequacy and suitability of the insurance liabilities are evaluated through the
calculation of the present value of the future cash flows relating to the general insurance
and its adequacy and creditability to the Insurance liabilities.

If the evaluation shows that the present value of the insurance liabilitiss (various purchase
expenses less suitable and related intangible assets) is inadequate compared to the
rzxpected future cash flows, the full impairment is recorded in the statement of profit or
0SS,

Offsetting
Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset, and the net amount Is reflected in the

statement of financial position only when there are legal rights to offset the recognized
amounts, the Company intends to settle them on a net basis, or assets are realized, and
liabilities settled simultaneously.

Revenue Egc_oignitir;m
1. Insurance Contracts

Insurance premiums arising from insurance contracts are recorded as revenue for the
year (earned insurance premiums) on the basis of the maturities of time periods and in
accordance with the insurance coverage periods. Unearned insurance premiums from
insurance contracts at the date of the financial statements are recorded as unearned
insurance premiums within liabilities.

Claims and incurred losses settlement expenses are recorded in the statement of profit or
loss based on the expected liability amount of the compensation relating to the insurance
policyholders or other affected parties.

2. Dividends and Interest
Dividends from investments are recorded when the right of the shareholders to recelve
dividends arises upon the related resolution of the General Assembly of Sharcholders,

Interest income is calculated according to the accrual method based on the maturities of
the time periods, original principals, and earned interest rate.

3. Rental Income
Rental income from real estate investments of operating lease contracts is recognized

based on the straight-line method over the contract term. Moreover, other expenses are
recognized on the accrual basis.

Expense Recognition

All commissions and other costs relating to the acquisition of new or renewed insurance
policies are amortized in the statement of profit or loss upon their occurrence. Other
expenses are recognized on the accrual basis.

Insurance Compensation
Insurance compensations represents claims pald and change in claims reserves,

Insurance compensations represent all amounts paid during the year whether they relate
to the current year or previous years. Moreover, outstandin? claims represent the
highest estimated amount for settlement of all claims resulting from events prior to the
financial statements date but still unsettled at that date. Moreover, outstanding claims
are calculated on the basis of the best information available at the date of the financial
statements and include the provision for unreported claims.

Salvage and Subrogation Compensation _
Estimates of salvage and subrogation compensations are considered in the measurement

of the insurance liability for claims.

ﬁﬁugral and Administrative Expenses
All distributable general and administrative expenses are allocated to the Insurance

branches separately. Moreover, 80% of the general and administrative expenses have
heen allocated to the various insurance departments based on the earned premiums of
each department in propertion to total premiums.

Employees Expens

Al distributabie employees’ expenses are allocated to the insurance branches separately.
Moreover, 80% of employees expenses have been allocated to the various insurance
deparltments based on the earned premiums of each department in proportion to total
premiums.
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Significant Accounting Judgments and Key Sources of Uncertainly

Preparation of the financial statements and application of the accounting policies require the
Company's management to perform estimates and judgments that affect the amounts of
the financial assets and liabilities, and disclosures relating to contingent liabilities. These
estimates and judgments also affect revenues, expenses, provisions in general and
expected credit loss In specific as well as changes in the fair value shown within
comprehensive income and shareholders’ equity. Management Is required to issue
significant judgments to assess future cash flows and their timing. The aforementioned
estimates are based on several assumptions and factors with varying degrees of estimation
and uncertainty. Moreover, the actual results may differ from the estimates due to changes
resulting from the circumstances and conditions of those estimates in the future.

Judgments, estimates, and assumptions are reviewed periodically. Mcoreover, the effect of
the change in estimates is recognized in the financial period In which the change occurs if
the change affects only the financial period. On the other hand, the effect of the change in
estimates is recognized in the financial period in which the change occurs and in future
periods if the change affects the financial period and future financial periods.

We believe that the estimates in the financial statements are reasonable. Details are as
follows:

Determination of the number and relative weight of scenarios and the outlook for each type
of product / market and the determination of future information relevant to each scenario:
When measuring the expected credit loss, the Company uses reasonable and supported
future information based on the assumptions of future variables of different economic
variables and how these variables affect each other.

The financial year is charged with its share from income tax according to the prevailing laws
and regulations in Jordan.

Management periodically re-evaluates the productive lives of tangible and intangible assets
for the purpose of calculating annual depreciation and amortization based on the general
condition of those assets and estimates of their expected productive lives in the future. Any
impairment loss is taken to the statement of profit or less,

The claims provision and technical provisions are taken based on technical studies and
according to the instructions of the Insurance Commission. Moreover, the mathematical
reserve is taken based on actuarial studies.

A provision for lawsuits against the Company is based on a legal study by the Company's
lawyers according to which probable future risks are determined. A review of such studies is
performed periodically.

Management reviews the financial assets, shown at cost, to evaluate any impairment in
their value. Such impairment is taken to the statement of profit or loss.

Real estate investments are evaluated by independent real estate experts according to
decision issued by the Jordanian Insurance Commission to evaluate any impairment in their
value in the financial statements.

Fair Value Hierarchy: The Company is required to determine and disclose the level in the
fair value hierarchy into which the fair value measurements are categorized in their entirety,
segregating fair value measurements in accordance with the levels defined in IFRS,
Differentiating between Level 2 and Level 3 fair value measurements, i.e., assessing
whether inputs are observable and whether the unobservable inputs are significant, may
require judgement and a careful analysis of the inputs used to measure fair value, including
consideration of factors specific to the asset or liability. When evaluating the fair value of
the financial assets and llabilities the Company uses market information when these are
available. In case Level 1 inputs are not available, the Company deals with independent and
qualified parties to prepare evaluation studies. Furthermore, the suitable evaluation
methods and inputs used In preparing the evaluation studies are reviewed by management.
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Business model evaluation

The classification and measurement of financial liability are based on the results of
repayment the principle and the associated interest as well the business model test. The
company determines the business model at a level that reflects the way in which the
company manage financial assets together in order to achieve a specific business objective.
This evaluation includes a judgment that reflects all relevant evidence, including how to
assess the performance of assets, measure their performance, the risks that affect the
performance of assets, how it managed, and how assets managers are compensate, The
Company monitors the financlal assets that measured at amortized cost and derecognized
before its maturities to understand the reason for derecognized and whether the reasons
are consistent with the objective of the business that has been retained. The balance is part
of the company’s continuous evaluation of whether the business model in which the
financial assets were retained remains appropriate and if it is not appropriate whether there
is a change In the business model and consequently a future change to the classification of
those assets. No such those changes were required during the periods shown.

Significant increase in credit risks

Expected credit loss measured, as it was discussed in note 2, as provision equal expected
credit loss for 12 months for the assets from the first stage, or equal to expected credit loss
over lifetime of the assets from the second or third stage. The asset is transferred to the
second stage if the credit risk has seen a significant increase since the initial recognition.
International financial reporting standard (9) does not specify what represents a significant
increase in credit risk. The company takes Into consideration when assessing whether the
credit rick of the asset has increased substantially, quantitative and qualitative Information
that can be obtained.

Calculation of provision for expected credit losses

The management is required to use important judgments and estimates to estimate the
amounts and timing of future cash flows and to estimate the risk of significant increase In
credit risk for financial assets after the initial recognition and future measurements
infoarmation for expected credit losses.

The expected credit loss is measured as an allowance equivalent to the expected credit loss
over the life of the asset.

Determining the number and relative weight of forward-looking scenarios for each type of
products / market and the identification of future information relevant to each scenarno.

When measuring the expected credit loss, the company uses reasonable and supporting
future information based on assumplions about the future movement of significant
economic variables and how those variables affect the calculation of the expected credit
loss.

Probability of default

The probability of default is a key Input in measuring the expected credit loss. The
probability of default is considered an estimate of the probability of default over a given
period of time, which Includes the calculation of historical data, assumptions and
expectations relating to future circumstances.

Loss given default

Loss given default is an estimate of the loss arising from default. It is based on the
difference between the contractual cash flows due and those that the financer expects to
collect, taking into account cash flows from collaterals and credit adjustments.

Revenue Recognition

The Company's management uses significant estimates and assumptions to determine the
amount and timing of the recognition of revenue under IFRS 15 "Revenue from Contracts
with Customers”,
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3. De

its at Ba

This Item consists of the following:

Inside Jordan:
Société General Bank
Invest Bank

December 31, 2021

Arab Jordan Investment Bank
Egyptian Arab Land Bank

Balance

Expected credit loss *

Adjusted Balance

Deposits Deposits
Maturing Maturing
Within One  after Three
Month to Months
Three and up to
Months One Year Total
D JD D
1,580,799 - 1,580,799
1,750,000 1,100,000 2,850,000
1,890,000 = 1,890,000
2,000,000 - 2,000,000
7,220,795 1,100,000 8,320,799
- (10,082) (10,082)
7,220,799 1,089,918 _ 8,310,717

December 31,

2020

Total

D
2,445,074
2,725,000
2,290,000
2,000,000
9,460,074

(10,082)
9,449,992

- During the year 2021, annual Interest rates on deposits at banks in Jordanian Dinar ranged
fram 4.25% to 4.5%. (2020: 4.25% Lo 4.5%)

- Moreover, deposits collateralized to the order of the General Director of the Insurance
Commission in addition to his position amounted to 1D 830,000 as of December 31, 2021 at
the Invest Bank.

- Restricted balances amounted to 1D 300,000 as of December 31, 2021. These balances
represent cash deposits against an overdraft facility granted to the Company, in addition to
the deposits mortgaged to the order of the General Director of the Insurance Commission.

Balances with banks are assessed to have low credit risk of default since this bank are
highly requlated by the Central Bank of Jordan. Accordingly, the Company’s management
estimates the provision of loss on balances with banks at the end of the reporting period at
an amount equal to 12 months expected credit loss. Taking into account the historical
default experience and the current credit ratings of the banks, the Company's management
have assessed that there is no impairment, hence no provision was recorded on these
balances.

. Financial Ass Fair Value throu
This item consists of the following:
December 31
2021 2020
Inside Jordan: 1D D
Quoted shares or listed 125,322 151,356
125,322 151,356
5. Fi i ssets at Fair Va rough Other Comprehensive Income
This item consists of the following:
December 31
2021 2020
Inside Jordan 5] |5
Quoted shares at Amman Stock Market 5,229,063 4,435,776
Unquoted shares at Amman Stock Market * 8762 8,389
5,237,825 4,444,165
Qutsi n
Arab Reinsurance Company - Lebanon * 191,503 187,551

5429,328 _ 4,631,716
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*  This investment has heen evaluated according to the equity method used and the
Company's last audited financial statements, The Company has conducted a detailed study
of the investee company and the company believes that there is no impairment, in terms of

market value exceeding the book value.

6. Financial Assets at Amaortized Cost
This item consists of the following:
December 31
2021 2020
Inside Jordan D b
Arab Corp Company bonds * 50,000 50,000
Less: Provision for impairment in
Arab Corp Company bonds (49,999) [(49,999)
1 ik
Ahli Bank bonds ** 1,000,000 1,000,000
Jordanian Government Bonds **# 3,124,000 1,988,000
4,124,000 1,988,000
Outside Jordan
Turkish Government Bonds **#** 426,000 -
Balance 4,550,001 2,988,001
Less: Expected credit loss ***** (3,000) {3,000)
Adjusted Balance ___4,547,001 2,985,001

*  Arab Corp bonds matured on April 1, 2014 and the original bond and any interest for the
company were not paid, a provision was made for the entire value of this bond and the
suspension of interest recognition during the past years.

** On October 12, 2017, the Company invested in (10) loan bonds with a nominal value of
100,000 1D / loan bond with a total value of one million ID from the Jordan Ahli Bank with a
contribution rate of 4% in the bonds, these bonds are due on November 12, 2023, with the
benefit of issuing 6.75% for the first six months, at a variable Interest rate, where the
interest is recalculated every six months during the life of the bond, so that the interest at
the beginning of each period is equal to the discount interest rate at the Central Bank plus a
margin of 2%.

*#%  On June 17, 2020, the Company invested in (13) Jordanian government loan bonds and on
April 13, 2021 invested in (7) Jordanian government loan bonds and on October 31, 2021
invested in (1) Jordanian government loan bond with a nominal value of $ 200,000 / loan
bond and a total value of $ 4,200,000 through Housing Bank. These bonds are due on
October 10, 2047, and at a fixed interest rate of 7.375% annually, it is calculated based on
the number of actual days divided by 360 days.

*%%%  On April 5, 2021, the company invested in (3) Turkish government loan bonds with a
nominal value of $200,000 / loan bond with a total value of $600,000 through the Housing
Bank. These bonds are due on January 14, 2041, at an interest rate of 6% annually and
calculated based on the actual number of days divided by 360 days.

ik Movement on the Expected Credit Loss for Financial Assets at Amortized Cost:

2021 2020
D i[s}
Balance - beginning of the year 3,000 1,000
Additions during the year s _ 2,000
Balance - End of the Year 3,000 3,000
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7. Investment Property - Net
This item consists of the following:

December 31,

2021 2020
D D
Lands 646,985 646,985
Buildings 5,007,455 5,007,455
Less: Accumulated depreciation (880,058) (794,172)
Bulldings - net of accumulated depreciation 4,127,397 4,213,283
4,774,382 4,860,268

- The movement on the accumulated depreciation account was as follows:

2021 2020
D D
Balance - beginning of the year 794,172 708,050
Depreciation expense 85,886 86,122
Balance at Year-End 880,058 794,172

- Buildings are depreciated at an annual rate of 2% and are stated at the carrying amount.

- The fair value of investments property has been assessed by three real estate evaluators at
1D 7,558,758 as of December 31, 2021,

8. Cash on Hand and at Banks
This item consists of the following:
December 31,

2021 2020
D JD
Cash on hand 1,182 2,965
Current accounts at banks 627,205 3,483,152
628,387 3,486,117

9. Chegues under Collection

This item consists of the following:
Decamber 31,

2021 2020
D ]}
Balance 2,021,536 1,934,300
Expected credit losses (6,258) (6.,958)
Balance 2,014,578 1,827,342

#+ The maturities of cheques under collection extends to December 15, 2023, These cheques
include cheques due from related parties totaling 1D 126,747.
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10. Receivables - MNet
This item consists of the following:

December 31,

2021 2020
1D D
Palicyholders’ receivables 4,199,874 4,809,029
Agents’ receivables 928,597 992,629
Broker's receivables 1,477,469 1,202,291
Employee's receivables 20,036 22,847
Legal cases receivables 436,758 436,677
Related parties’ receivables (Note 40) 1,521,000 1,265,394
Other receivables 226,017 117,484
8,809,751 8,846,351
Less: Expected Credit Losses * (2,131,335) (2,031,335)
Receivables — Net 6,678,416 6,815,016
*  The movement on the expected credit losses as follows:
2021 2020
b B}
Balance at the beginning of the year 2,031,335 1,531.:335
Additions during the year {(Note 30) 100,000 500,000
Balance = End of the Year 2,131,335 2,031,355

The aging of receivables is as follows:
December 31,

2021 2020
D D
Less than 20 days 2,550,650 2,186,208
90 - 180 days 2,129,145 2,617,062
181 - 270 days 2,341,825 1,475,002
271 - 360 days 299,422 1,017,579
More than 360 days** 1,488,709 1,550,410
8,808,751 8,846,351

*% There are recelvables due from related parties amounted to JD 1,521,000 of which an
amount of 1D 387,627 aging more than 365 days for which a full provision has been taken
as of December 31, 2021,

- In the opinion of the Company's management, there is no need to record any additional
provisions.

- The company always measures the provision for loss for debtors at an amount equal to the
expected credit losses over the life of the debt using the simplified approach. The expected
credit losses on debtors are estimated using an allowance matrix by referring to previous
experiences with the customer and an analysis of the debtor's current financial position,
adjusting it according to the debtors' factors, the general economic conditions of the field in
which the debtors operate and an assessment of the current trend as well as the expected
trend of conditions at the date of the report.
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At ance and Locdl INSUrdNce
This item consists of the following:
December 31,
2021 2020
JD D

Local insurance companies 330,144 389,526
Foreign re-insurance companies 56,447 246,4€1

386,591 635,987
Less: Expected credit loss for re-insurance accounts * (35,207) (35,207)

Re-insurance Companies’ Accounts - Net 351,384 600,780

The aging of re-insurance companies’ accounts receivable is as follows:
December 31,

2021 2020
D 1D
Less than 90 days 226,813 357,331
90 - 180 days 50,662 175,947
181 - 270 days 51,041 25,648
271 - 360 days 2,691 75,789
More than 360 days 15,384 1,272
386,591 635,987

A provision is booked for reinsurers’ expected credit Loss with due age of more than one
year and with no repayments and according to the management estimates. Thus, The
Company always measures the loss provision for relnsurance receivables at an amount
equal to the expected credit losses over the life of the liability, using the simplified
approach. The expected credit losses are estimated on the receivables of reinsurers using a
matrix of allocations by referring to previous experiences with the repeater and an analysis
of the current financial position of the repeater, with adjustments according to factors
specific to the reinsurer's receivables, the general economic conditions of the field in which
the reinsurer operates and an assessment of the current trend as well as the expected
direction of the conditions on the date of the report.

. Income Tax

. Income tax provision

Movement on the income tax provision was as follows:

2021 2020
D o
Balance at the beginning of the year 479,762 296,344
Income tax paid (568,216) (364,782)
Income tax expense for the year* 336,332 536,179
National contribution fees 31,094 47,177
Tax paid on interest deposits (30,604) (35,156)
Income tax expense prior years 12,489 5
Balance - End of the Year 260,857 479,762
Income tax in the statement of profit or lass represents the fallowing:
2021 2020
B D
Iincome tax for the year 363,332 536,179
National contribution fees 31,094 47,177
Income tax for prior years 12,489 -
Deferred tax assets (30,723) (110,629)
376,192 472,727
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- The movement on deferred tax assets and liabilities as follows:

December 31,

2021 2020
Assets Liabilities Assels Liabilities
D D D D
Balance at the beginning of the year 863,953 26,864 652,554 26,864
Added / (released) (176,655) £ 211,399 =
Balance at Year — End for the Year 687,298 26,864 BE63,953 26,864

- Summary of the reconciliation of accounting profit with taxable profit:

2021 2020
10 1D

Declared accounting profit 1,671,337 1,574,255
Non-taxable item (1,875,655) (1,925,045)
Non-deductible expenses 1,608,281 2,202,506
Taxable net-profit for the external investment 150,756 -
Taxable Profit 1,554,719 2,251,716
Income Tax Rate 249 245
National contribution fees 2% 2%
External Investment Tax Rate 10% 10%

- The company's tax status has been finalized and settled until the end of 2018, knowing that
self-assessment statements have been submitted for the year 2020 and have not yet been
reviewed by the Income and Sales Tax Department.
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14. Intangible -
This item consists of the following:

Computer
Programs
December 31, 2021 D
Cost - Beginning of the Year: 286,061
Additions 10,798
Balance - End of the Year 296,859
Accumulated Amortization:
Balance at the beginning of the year 252,696
Amortization for the year 28,524
Balance at Year-End 281,220
Net Book Value of Intangible Assets N 15,629
Computer
Programs
December 31, 2020 D
Cost:
Balance - Beginning and End of the Year 286,061
I Amortization:
Balance at the beginning of the year 223,027
Amortization for the year 29,069
Balance at Year-End = 252,696
Net Book Value of Intangible Assets 33,365
15, Other Assets
This item consists of the following:
December 31,
2021 2020
o B [p]
Accrued revenues not received 196,079 181,746
Prepaid expenses 10,335 13,806
Recovered claims paid — net * 244,308 179,828
Refundable deposits 3,426 3,426
Arab War Risks Insurance Syndicate 329,935 274,040
Sales tax deposits 1,403,944 =
2,188,027 652,846

*  During the year, the Company assessed other insurance companies’ recoveries and
deducted the related amounts from the compensations paid.

16 ical Reserve
The movement on the mathematical reserve is as follows:
December 31,

2021 2020
D D
Balance at the beginning of the year 40,712 81,573
Added / (Released) during the year B 9,656 (40,861)
Net Mathematical Reserve — End of the Year 50,368 40,712
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17. Accounts Payable
This item consists of the following:

December 31,

2021 2020
D D

Agents payable 255,737 278,767
Employees’ payable 311 346
Brokers payable 296,859 383,311
Policyholders (compensations) 799,786 36,756
Car workshops and spare parts 43,980 50,549
Third party administrative - medical insurance 713,909 631,540
Legal cases payable 30,359 29,971
Others 231,268 249,459

2,372,209 1,660,699

18. Re-insurance and Local Insurance Companies' Accounts Payable
This item consists of the following:

December 31,

2021 2020
1D D
Foreign re-insurance companies 2,554,483 5,311,742
Local Insurance companies 477 408 260,019
3,031,891 5,571,761

19, Accrued Expenses and Various Provisions
This item consists of the following:
December 31,

2021 2020
D 1]
Provision for the Insurance Commission’s fees 4,924 4,924
End of service provisien 40,032 21,B65
Accrued bonuses 131,171 147,690
176,127 174,479
The following table illustrates the movement on accrued expenses and the various
provisions:
Balance Released
Beginning Booked for During the  Balance ending
of the Year the Year Year of the Year
D D 1D D
Acerued expense for the Insurance
Administration 4,924 - - 4.924
End of service indemnity 21,865 18,167 - 40,032
Accrued bonuses 147,630 135,000 151,519 131,171
174,479 153,167 151,519 176,127
20. Other Liabilities
This item consists cf the following:
December 31,
2021 o 2020
o D
Revenues received in advance 63,746 56,326
Board of Directors’ bonuses 32,125 42,958
Other 63,656 165,111
159,527 264,395
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21. Authorized and Paid - up Capital and Issuance Premiums
- Authorized and paid-up capital amounted to JD 8,000,000 million, distributed over

8,000,000 shares with a par value of JD 1 each.
- Share premium amounted to JD 41,507,

22. Reserves
Statutory Reserve
The amounts in this account represent appropriations from annual Profit before tax at 10%
according to the Companies Law. This reserve may not be distributed to shareholders. The
total accumulated balance at the account shouldn‘t exceed 25% of the Company's paid-up
capital. The statutory reserve reached 25% of the company's paid-up capital and there is no
need to take any additional statutory reserves.

Voluntary Reserve

The amounts accumulated in this account represent appropriations frem annual profit before
tax at a rate not exceeding 20%. The voluntary reserve is used for the purposes decided by
the Board of Directors. Moreover, the General Assembly of Shareholders has the right to

distribute this amount fully or partially as profits te shareholders.

23. Financial Assets Valuation Reserve - Net
This item consists of the following:
2021 2020
D 1D
Balance at the beginning of the year (898,691) (611,881)
Change during the year (382,853) 387,580
Released from deferred tax assets 207,378 100,770
Net Change during the Year 590,231 (286,810)
Balance — End of Year (308,460) (898,691)
24, Retained Earnings
The movement on this item as the following:
2021 2020
JD JD
Balance at the beginning of the year 6,261,757 4,760,229
Profit for the year 1,322,145 1,501,528
Dividends distributed to shareholders (800,000} -
Balance — End of Year 6,783,902 6,261,757
25, Interest Revenue
This ltem consists of the following:
2021 2020
1D 1D
Bank interest 487,561 474,706
Eurc Bond Interest 55,442 75,608
Commercial Band Interest 55,000 55,000
638,003 605,314
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26. Net Gaj
This item consists of the following:

Net Change in fair value of financial assets fair value

inanclal Assets and Investments

through profit or loss

Cash dividends (from financial assets at fair value

through other comprehensive income)
Met rental income

27. Other Revenue - Net
This item consists of the following:

Prior year income from reinsurers
Cheques issuance fees

Other revenue

28. Employees’ Expenses
This item consists of the following:

&

Salaries and bonuses

Company's social security contributions
Medical expense

Provision for bonuses *

Travel and transportation

Employees Expenses Related Directly to Underwriting

Accounts

Employees’ Administrative Expenses Allocated
to underwriting Accounts

Total Employees’ Expenses Allocated to Underwriting
Accounts

Employees’ Expenses Unallocated to Underwriting
Accounts

2021 2020
D D
(26,034) 9,318
286,536 17,527
3,242 74,650
263,744 161,544
2021 2020
D D
§ 13,271
16,649 4,445
11 203
16,660 17,919
2021 2020
D D
1,042,497 1,066,337
120,693 124,684
82,242 82,212
160,175 225,725
13,940 7,261
1,419,547 1,506,219
541,257 572,100
702,633 747,295
1,243,850 1,319,395
175,657 186,824

This item represents employees’ bonuses allocated to entitled personnel according to the
Board of Directors’ decision at the time.
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29. General and Administrative Expenses
This item consists of the following:

Legal expenses and fees
Insurance Commission feas
Rent

Printing and stationery
Advertising and marketing
Bank charges

Bank interest

Travel and transportation
Maintenance

Post and telephone
Hospitality

Companies’ controller’s feas
Donations

Subscriptions
Government fees
Professional fees

Assets insurance

Cars expenses

Computer expenses
Actuary's fees

Other expenses

Total General and Administrative Expenses Allocated
to Underwriting Accounts *

Total General and Administrative Expenses
Unallocated to Underwriting Accounts

*  Expenses were allocated as follows:

Life

Motor

Marine and transportation
Fire and other damages
Liability

Medical

Aviation

Others

_42-

2021 2020
1D D
135,348 146,942
104,868 129,715
7,392 6,782
16,504 10,247
4,745 3,563
26,182 26,415
24 g3
2,509 4,162
27,035 42,646
675 28,237
5,569 4,513
1,409 610
5,530 11,326
13,384 17,549
8,306 9,473
8,750 16,583
4,955 3,366
17,236 20,864
19,969 17,345
13,569 3,046
84,100 160,309
508,059 663,786
406,447 531,029
101,612 132,757
2021 2020
1D D
6,159 7,622
182,920 229,256
5,614 6,942
50,577 68,084
5,290 6,417
153,279 212,103
1,808 -
800 605
406,447 531,029




30. Expected credit losses

This item consists of the following:

2021 2020
D D
Account receivables 100,000 500,000
Financial assets at amortized cost * 2,000
100,000 502,000
31. Other Expenses
This item consists of the following:
2021 2020
D D
Board of Directars’ bonuses 30,000 40,835
30,000 _40,835

32. Earnings per Share
Earnings per share have heen computed by dividing profit for the year by the outstanding
shares during the year and as follows:

B — 2020
1D D
Profit for the year - 1,322,145 1,501,528
~__ Share Share
Outstanding shares 8,000,000 8,000,000
JD [ Share JD / Share
Earnings per Share for the Year -/165 -/188

33, Cash and Cash Equivalent
This item consists of the following:

December 31,

2021 2020
D 1D
Cash on hand 1,182 2,965
Deposits at banks maturing within three months 7,220,799 2,445,074
Current accounts at banks 627,205 3,483,152
Less: Restricted deposits (1,100,000) (625,000}
6,749,186 5,306,191

34. Risk Management

The Company manages risks by various methods, using a comprehensive strategy to restrict
and mitigate risks. Moreover, the Company sets up appropriated controls and monitors their
effectiveness in a manner that achieves the optimal risk-retumn balance. Management of risks
included constantly identifying, measuring, managing, and menitoring the financial and non-
financial risks that may negatively affect the Company's performance and reputation. In
addition, the Company guarantees the allocation of capital to achieve the optimal average
return on risks. The Company is also exposed to the following risks: insurance risks and,
financial risks, representing market risks, liquidly risks, Interest rate risks, and commission
rate risks.

a. Insurance Risk

1. Insurance Risks
Insurance risks are the risks of uncertainty as to the occurrence, timing, and amount of
insurance claims. Moreover, insurance risks can be managed through following up on the
size and all types of new Insurance, soundness of pricing, and actual claims against the
expected claims.

. |



Risk according to the insurance policy is the probability of occurrence of an accident to the
insured and the consequential claims of uncertain amounts due to the nature of the
insurance policy. The occurrence of the risk is sudden, and therefore, cannot be expected.

The key risk that the insurance companies face according to the insurance policies arises
from actual claims and benefits payments exceeding the amount stated under insurance
liabilities. In addition, there is the probability of improper pricing of risks and underwriting
in bad, uninsurable risks, Consequently, the inflow of claims, benefits, and their severity
exceed the assessed incurable amounts of insurance claims. Moreover, the actual
amounts, claims amounts, and benefits differ, from year to year, from the expected
assessments.

The more diversified the insurance portfolio, the less susceptible it becomes to the Impact
of the changes to any of its components. Moreover, the Company has developed the
strategy of underwriting through insurance policies to diversify the insurance risks it
accepts. Such diversification included every category to broaden the risks base and reduce
the percentage of change in the expected result.

The Company signed insurance policies with other companies to mitigate the risks arising
from large claims.

The re-insurance policies do not resolve the Company’s liabilities toward others. Instead,
the Company remains liable to others concerning the reinsured share even if the re-
insured Company does not fulfill its liabilities.

The Company manages these risks through a sound underwriting strategy, excellent
category of re-insurance treaties, and dealing effectively with accidents. Moreover, the
Company sets the underwriting bases that make available the criteria for risk selection.

The risk analysis below is determined based on the exposure to risks related to unearred
premiums as of the financlal statements date. Moreover, the analysis has been prepared,
assuming that the amount of unearned premiums as of the date of the financial
statements was outstanding for the whole year. An increase or decrease of (5%) is used,
representing management's evaluation of the probable and acceptable extent of accuracy
of the provision for unearned premiums calculation,

+5% -5%
December 31, _ December 31,
2021 2020 2021 2020
D D D 1D
Statement of profit or loss 336,407 313,875 (336,407) (313,875)
Shareholders' equity 336,407 313,875  (336,407) (313,875)
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Gross = Liability Insurance:

Year of Actident

As of yoar-ent

Albar ong year

After two years

After three years

After Four vears

Current expectetions of cumulative claims

Curmulative payrmeols

Liabiliiti=s a5 stated In the seatement of fnanclal pesition
Reported claims

(Defloit) n the prefimingry estenate of the provision

Gross - Personal insnrance

Wear of Accident

Ag of year-and

After ane year

Aiter two years

Aller Lree years

Aftar Sour yaars

Current eepectalions of cumulative claims

Curmuiative payments

Liamlities &8 stated (n the statement of financlal position:
Lnreparted clakms

(oreflcit) In the prefl minary estimate of the provision

Gross = Life Insurance:

Yaar of Acrident

As of year-end

After ane year

After bwo years

Alter three years

After four yeerrs

Current sapectatinns of cumilative claims

Comulative paymerts

Llabilities as stated in the statement of fMinancial position:

Unreparted claims

Surplus (Defict) in the preliminary estimate of the provislon

2017 und Cecember 31,
prior years 2018 2019 2020 2021 Tatal
e D 1 o o o
195,332 21,623 13,317 17,B15 2,342 333,731
139,332 £1/623 51,900 17818 - 3000z
139,332 23675 13,675 . 326,014
138,512 23,675 - = 340,649
138,512 - = - - 274,959
149,470 63,625 23,675 17,815 2,312 406, 368
93,308 15,8414 By62 17,165 812 237 A7
12,986 B3,625 3,500 ana 1500 81,011
= = = B1% g1o
32,549 {57.9486) 3456 350 - 24,643
2017 and December 31,
prier years 2018 plinL ] 2020 201 Tatal
1] o n i3 bl +] B
10,375 360 630 104 2,310 18,779
10,375 360 630 5104 - 16,463
16,916 360 630 - 11,008
10,918 36l - 11,276
= - 2,130 2,310
9,574 360 360 Sa04 2310 17,8978
- = 12 - 12
RO1 - (12) = 789
2017 end Dacember 351,
priar years 2018 2019 2020 2021 Total
i [s] in il Jo il n
590,320 156,561 87,455 134 B8 - 970,660
590,320 156,961 87,495 134,864 - 979,660
59(, 320 166,981 87,495 - - 544,796
5an 320 166,981 = = 757,201
530,320 - 3 = 590,320
590,370 166,561 E7 495 134,664 979,660
525,894 167,235 £5,225 134,864 - 319,016
64,426 £9,746 23472 13,000 - 160,644
= - - 10,000 10,000

= =



3. Concentration of Insurance Risks
Concentration of assets and liabilities and off-statement of financial position items related
to unearned premiums provision, claims provision, and mathematical provision is as
follows:
For the Year Ended December 31,

2021 2020
S Risks Type
Type of Insurance Gross Net Gross Net
] D ilp] D
Motor 16,563,808 15,600,027 17,247,764 15,487,794
Marine and transportation 210,551 41,212 204,987 39,345
Fire and other damages to properties
insurance 3,257,034 273,430 12,186,239 286,099
Liability 160,058 64,276 204,928 75,856
Medical 3,113,385 1,767,290 2,831,146 1,769,958
Other insurance 20,117 12,816 12,158 3,738
Aviation 15,525 a46 - -
Life insurance 322,476 99,654 553,385 117,976

23 664,044 17,859,651 33,240,607 _ 17,780,786

Concentration of the assets and liabilities according to the geographical distribution is as
follows;

~ December 31, 2021 December 21, 2020
Assets Liabilities Assets Liabilities
D 1D D D
According to Geographical Area.
Inside Jordan 39,730,125 22,582,242 40,399,317 21,151,165
Europe 475,951 1,100,875 240,283 4,066,137
Other Middle East countries 197,999 204,008 723,722 741,447

40,404,075 23,887,126 41,363,322 _ 25,958,749

Concentration of accounts receivable and accounts payable according to sector is
as follows:

December 31, 2021 December 31, 2020
Assets Liabilities Assets Liabilities
o Jo D] b
According to Sector:
Private Sector 6,678,416 2,372,209 6,815,016 1,660,699
Total 6,678,416 2,372,208 6,815,016 1,660,699

4. Re-insurance Risks
The Company signed re-insurance contracts with other companies to mitigate the risks
arising from large claims.

The Company evaluated the financial position of the contracted re-insurance company, Its
concern hinges on credit risks resulting from the geographical distribution and nature of
work and activities of the re-insurance companies.

The Company entered re-insurance contracts that enable it to face risks with competitive
pricing and to maintain the optimal |evel of risks, taking into consideration financial
resources such as reserves, volume of securities portfolio, and ready assets.

The size of retained risks is in line with scientific criteria and the general comparison index.
More important for the Company is keeping a high liquidity ratic.

The re-insurance premiums do not replace the Company’s liabilities toward others.

Instead, the Company remains liable to others In terms of the reinsured share even if the
Company does not fulfill its insurance obligations.
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b, Financial Risks
The Company adopts financial policies for managing the different risks within a specified
strategy. Moreover, the Company’s management monitors and controls risks and performs
the optimal strategic distribution for both financial assets and financial liabilities. Risks
include interest rate risks, credit risks, foreign currency risks, and market risks.

The Company adopts a financial hedging policy for financial assets and financial liabilities,
when necessary. This hedging relates to the expected future risks.

1. Market Risk

Market risks are the risks arising from the fluctuation in fair value or cash flows of

financial instruments as a result of the change in market prices. Moreover, market risks

arise from open positions relating to Interest rates, currencies, and investments in
shares. These risks are monitored according to certain policies and procedures thraugh
competent committees and the concerned work centers. Additionally, market risks
include interest rates, exchange rates risks, and equity instrument risks.

2. Liquidity Risk

Liquidity risks relate to the Company’s inability to make available the necessary

financing to meet its obligations on their maturity dates. Furthermore, management of

risks include the following:

- Keeping highly marketable assets that can be easily liquidated as a safeguard
against unforeseeable shortfall in liquidity.

= Monitoring liquidity Indicators according to the internal requirements and
requlatory authorities’ requirements.

Managing concentrations and debts maturity dates.

- The following table summarizes the maturities of financial liabilities (on the basis
of the remaining period of the maturity from the date of the financial
statements):

From 1 From 3 From 6
Less than Month to 3 Months to & Months to 1 From 1 Year More than
{ne Manth Months Menths Year to 3 Years 3 Years Tatal
December 31, 2021 1D i} 1D 1o D o 1D
Financial Liabilites:
Re-insurance 537,628 194,773 785,098 569,802 855,713 - 2,943,014
companies’
Account Payables 1,047,174 679,422 106,060 217,637 321,915 - 2,372,209
Other liabilities 63,764 - 32,126 63,747 - 159,636
Total 1,648,566 874,195 023,284 851,186 1,177,638 - 5,447,860
Total Assefs
{according to
their expected
maturiﬁs} 4,268,387 3,580,799 5,446,497 4,346,497 2,529,329 20,232,566 40,404 075
From 1 From 3 Fram &
Less than Month to 3 iMonths o 6 Months to 1 From 1 Year  More than
December 31, 2020 One Month Manths Months Year to 3 Years 3 Years Total
Financial Liabllities: o D D D 1D 1D 1D
Re-insurance
companies’ 3,284,717 106,687 615,747 1,782,694 281,916 5,571,761
Account Payables 818,774 596,571 140,065 206,932 398,357 - 1,660,695
Other llabilities 99,286 185,109 - - - - 264,395
Taotal _ 4,202,777 368,387 755,812 1,489,626 680,273 - 7,496,855
Total Assets
faccording to
their expected
maturities) 2,513,049 2,445,074 12,135,871 4,509,980 2,343,424 17415924 41,363,322
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3. Currency Risks
The Company's main operations are in Jordanian Dinar. Moreover, currency risk relates to the
risk of changes in currency rates that relate to payments denominated in foreign currencies. As
for transactions in US Dollars, management believes that the foreign currency risk relating to
the US Dollar is immaterial as the Jordanian Dinar (the functional currency) Is pegged to the
us Dollar.

The following illustrates the Company's major foreign currency risks:

Forelgn Currency ~Jordanian Dinar
December 31,
2021 2020 2021 2020
D D - D 1D
3,550,000 7,038,165 5,014,124 4,983,021

Type of Currency:

Us Dollar

Management believes that the Company’s foreign currency risks and their impact on the
financial statements are Immaterial.
4. Interest Rate Risk
Interest rate risk is the risk that the value of a financial instrument will fluctuate due to
changes in market interest rates. Moreover, the Company manages interest rate risks through
applying the sensitivity analysis of interest rate instruments in a manner that does not
negatively affect net interest income.

The Company also manages its Interest rate risk regularly by evaluating the different
alternatives such as funding and renewing current positions and alternative funding.

The sensitivity analysis below has been determined based on the exposure to interest rates of
deposits at the financial statements date. The analysis is prepared assumning that the amount
of deposits at the statement of financial position date was outstanding for the whole year. A
“0.5%" increase or decrease Is used which represents management's assessment of the
reasonable probable net change in market interest rates.

+0/5% {0/5%)
December 31, December 31,
2021 2020 2021 2020
| b} b D 1D
Statement of profit or loss 41,554 47,250 (41,554) (47,250)
Shareholders’ equity 41,554 47,250 (41,554) (47,250)

5. Sensitivity of Insurance Risks

December 31, 2021

December 31, 2020

Statement of Changes in Statement of Changes in
profit or loss Equity profit or loss Equity
1D in] D D

Profit or loss [/ shareholders’ equity 1,322,145 16,516,949 1,501,528 15,404,573
Impact of decreasing gross compensations

by 5% while holding other factors constant (1,124,550) (1,124,550) (1,088,464) (1,088,464)

197,595 15,392,359 413,064 14,316,109

Profit or loss / shareholders’ equity 1,322,145 16,516,949 1,501,528 15,404,573
Impact of increasing gross compensations

by 5% while holding other factors constant (1,232.719) (1,232,719) (847,656)  (847,656)

89,426 15,284,230 653,872 14,556,917
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&. Share Price Risks
These risks represent the decrease in equity investments due to the changes in the indicators
level of subscribed shares in the Company’s portfolio.

The following Is the impact of a +5% or -5% change in the index of the stock exchange in
which the shares are traded:

Impact on
Profit for Impact on Impact on Impact on
Change in the year  shareholders’ Profit for the  Shareholders’
Index 2021 Equity 2021 year 2020 Equity 2020
D 1D 1D 1D Bl
Stock Exchanges %5 Increase 6,266 261,453 7,568 221,788
Stock Exchanges %5 decrease (6,266) (261,453) (7,568) (221,788)

7. Credit Risk
Credit risk relates to the other party’s inability to meet its contractual obligations leading to
the incurrence of losses by the Company. Moreover, the Company adopts a policy of dealing
with creditworthy parties in order to mitigate the financial losses arising from the Company’s
default on its liabilities. The Company does not follow a policy of taking guarantees against
accounts receivable. Consequently, accounts receivables are not guaranteed.

The Company's financial assets consist primarily of holders of documents and financial
investments at fair value through the statement of profit or loss, financial investment at fair
value through the statement of comprehensive income, property investments, cash and cash
eguivalents, and other debit accounts. Moreover, holders of documents represent debts due
from the locally insured parties, governmental bedies, large projects, and external
customers. Moreover, the Company’s management believes that the ratio of the debts owed
to the Company is high. However, the probability of no collection of all or part of these debts
is very low. Moreover, these debts represent significant concentration of risk in the
custamers’ geographical areas. In addition, stringent credit risks control is maintained, as
each customer’s account is monitored separately and constantly. Customer’s concentration
according to their geographical areas is as follows:

Assets
2021 2020
Geogr i : 1D 10
Inside Jordan 32,185,647 27,865,520
Outside Jordan 873,950 577,077

32,869,597 28,442,597

35. Main Segments Analysis

a. Information h mpany’

For managerial purposes, the Company was organized into two sectors; the General
Insurance Sector which includes motor, marine transportation, fire and other damages on
properties, liability, and medical and the Life Insurance Sector. These two sectors represent
the main sectors that the Company uses to demonstrate the information related to the main
sectors. The above-mentioned sectors also include investments and management of cash for
the Company’s own account, Mareover, transactions among the operational sectors are based
on estimated market prices at the same terms used for others.

b. Information on Geographical Distribution
This note represents the geographical distribution of the Company's operations. Moreover,
the Company conducts its operations mainly in the Kingdom, representing local operations.
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The following is the distribution of the Company's revenue and capital expenditures according
to geographical sector:

Inside Jordan Outside Jordan Tetal
For the Year Ended December 31,
2021 2020 2021 2020 2021 2020
D D D D D D
Total revenue 15,141,183 17,468,624 916,082 536,171 16,057,165 18,004,795
Capital expenditures 280,603 276,549 - - 280,603 276,549
December 31, B
- 2021 2020 2021 2020 2021 2020
1D 1D i) 1D D D
Total assets 40,404,075 40,574,992 - 788,330 40,404,075 41,363,322
36, Capital Management

- Achieving Capital Management Objectives:
The Company aims to achieve capital management objectives through growing the
Company's operations; achieving surplus in operating profits and revenues; and optimal
employment of available resources. This is to achieve the targeted growth in sharehclders’
equity through growing the statutory reserve at 10% of the realized profits and the voluntary
reserve at no more than 20% (if necessary) and retained earnings.

The Company takes into consideration that the size of capital should be compatible with the
size and nature of risks that the Company is exposed to. This is carried out in & manner that
does not contradict the regulations and instructions in force and is reflected in the Company’s
strategies and budgets. Moreover, the effect on capital adequacy ratio is considered upon
acquiring investments. Additionally, capital and its adequacy are monitored periodically.

- The solvency margin as of December 31, 2021 and 2020 is as follows:
December 31,

First: Available capital *

Second: Required capital
Capital required against assets risks
Capital required against underwriting liabllities
Capital required against life insurance
Capital required against reinsurance risk

Tetal Required Capital

Third: Solvency margin ratio (available capital / required
capital)

2021 2020
1D 1D

15,631,060 17,216,941
7,226,430 5,925,431
2,785,946 2,956,932
41,849 45,177
159,122 158,068
10,213,347 9,085,608

%180 %189

*  Awvailable capital consists of the following:

December 31,

Primary Capital:
Paid-up capital
Statutory reserve
Insurance premium
Retained earnings
Less: Proposed dividends

Plus: Supplementary Capital:
Financial assets cumulative change in fair value
(Decrease) increase in investment properties fair value

Total Supplementary Capital

2021 2020
D D

8,000,000 8,000,000
2,000,000 2,000,000
41,507 41,507
6,783,902 6,261,757
800,000 800,000
16,025,408 15,503,264
(308,463)  (898,691)
(85,886) 2,612,368
(349,348) 1,713,677
15,631,060 17,216,941
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37. Assets and Liabilities Maturities

The following table shows the analysis of assets and liabilities according to their expected
period of recovery or settlement:
Mare than One

Within One Year Year Tatal
D 2021 JD 1D 1D
Assets
Deposits at banks 8,310,717 - 8,310,717
Financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss 125,322 - 125,322
Financial assets at fair value through
other comprehensive income - 5,429,328 5,429,328
Financial assets at amortized cost - 4,547,001 4,547,001
Investment property = 4,774,382 4,774,382
Cash on hand and at banks 628,387 = 628,387
Chegues under collection 1,480,714 533,864 2,014,578
Receivable - net 6,678,416 5 6,678,416
Re-insurance and local insurance
companies’ accounts receivables 351,384 = 351,384
Deferred tax assets - 687,298 687,298
Property and equipment — net = 4,653,586 4,653,596
Intangible assets - net = 15,639 15,639
Other assets 908,386 1,279,641 2,188,027
Total Assets - 18,483,326 21,920,749 40,404,075
Liabilities
Unearned premiums provision — net 6,728,139 = 6,728,139
Claims provision — net 7,716,215 3,364,929 11,081,144
Mathematical provision — net 50,368 - 50,368
Payables 1,513,210 858,999 2,372,209
Re-insurance and local insurance
companies’ accounts payables 2,713,262 318,629 3,031,891
\farious provisions 136,085 40,032 176,127
Income tax provision 260,857 - 260,857
Deferred tax liabilities d 26,864 26,864
Other liabilities 158,527 = 159,527
Total Liabilities 19,277,673 4,609,453 23,887,126
Net (794,347) 17,311,296 16,516,949

.



Within One More than One Total

December 31, 2020 JD D 1D
Assets
Deposits at banks 9,449,992 - 9,449,992
Financial assets at fair value through profit or 151,356 - 151,356
Financial assets at fair value through other - 4,631,716 4,631,716
Financial assets at amortized cost . 2,985,001 2,985,001
Investment property . 4,860,268 4 860,268
Cash on hand and at banks 3,486,117 = 3,486,117
Cheques under collection 1,202,019 725,323 1,927,342
Receivable - net 6,815,016 - B,815,016
Re-insurance and local insurance companies’ 600,780 = 600,780
Deferred tax assets - 863,953 863,953
Property and equipment - nek = 4,905,570 4,905,570
Intangible assets - net = 33,365 33,365
Other assets 375,390 277,456 652,846
Takal Ansats 22,080,670 19,282,652 41,363,322
Liabilities
Unearned premiums provision — net 6,277,497 = 6,277,497
Claims provision — net 7,742,001 3,720,579 11,462,580
Mathematical provision — net 40,712 - 40,712
Payables 1,262,342 398,357 1,660,699
Re-Insurance and local insurance companies’ 5,285,845 281,916 5,571,761
Various provisions 174,479 = 174,479
Income tax provision 479,762 = 479,762
Deferred tax liabilities = 26,864 26,864
Other liabilities 264,385 - 264,395
Total Liabilities 21,531,033 4,427,716 25,958,749
e 549,637 14,854,936 15,404,573

. Lawsuits agains
There are lawsuits against the Company claiming compensation on various accidents.
Moreover, the lawsuits at courts with determined amounts totaled D 6,029,845 as of
December 31, 2021 (1D 6,310,122 as of December 31, 2020}, In the opinion of the Company’s
management and its lawyer, no obligations exceeding the provisions booked within the claims
provision will arise.

There are lawsuits claimed by the company against others and the totaled valuated lawsuits
amounted to approximately 1D 4,020,874 as of December 31, 2021.

39, Contingent Liabilities
As of the date of the statement of financial position, the Company was contingently liable for
the following:

- Bank guarantees of 1D 179,683,
- Bank credits of JD 1,441.

40. Transactions with Related Parties
- The Company entered transactions with major shareholders, members of the Board of
Directors, and executive management within its regular activities. All insurance credit
granted to related parties are considered cperating.
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- The following is a summary of the transactions with related parties during the year:
December 31,

2021 - 2020

Statement of Financial Position Items: D D
Accounts receivable:

Jordan Projects for Tourism Development * 456,187 265,397
Jordan Paper and Cardboard Company * / ** 387,627 387,627
Modern Arab Distribution Company Ltd * 359,789 184,941
Yousef Nader & Sons Company * 118,009 85,797
General Investment Company * 125,245 120,744
Abu Jaber Brothers Company * 12 107,185
Board of Directors and Shareholders Receivables 9,830 9,313
Communication Development Company * 7,233 7,233
Sad Abu Jaber and Sons Company 13,786 12,772
Al Awael Distribution and General Trading Company 2,440 4,655
Arabian Italian Trading Company 3,287 6,136
Specialized Distributors for consumer goeds Company 12,233 20,811
Bidfood Service Middle East- Jordan Company 5,345 6,695
Jordan Distribution Company and Agencies 16,797 14,498
Al-Yadouda Trading Company * 3,080 3,695
Agaba Packaging company-Aqaba Special Economic Zone - 3,085
Jordan Spectrum For Information Technology Company ] - 4,800

1,521,000 1,265,394

Checlks under Collection:

Jordan Projects for Tourism Development Company # - 120,419
Orient Insurance Company * 2 52,803
Abu Jaber Brothers Company * 126,747 =

126,747 283,222

Checks under collection mainly represent the amount of rent related to the current
vear,

Accounts Payable:

Marina Plaza Hotel 169 169
Specialized Logistics Services Company 286 286
Yousef Nader & Sons Company - higher management _ 441
Board of directors and sharehalders payables 20,603 22,555

21,058 23,451

For the Year Ended
December 31,

2021 2020
Profit or Loss Statement Items: 1D 1D
Revenues and commissions on underwritten installments 925,259 985,042
Compensation paid 578,108 622,756
Rental income 10,879 96,242
Cash dividends 44,788 74,676

The following is a summary of the benefits (salaries, bonuses, and other benefits) for
executive management:
For the Year Ended
December 31,

2021 2020
Description D JD
Salaries and other benefits 744,620 783,345

The Company is partially owned by a member cf the Board of Directors.

There are receivables due from related parties amounted to ID 1,521,000 of which an
amount of 1D 387,627 aging more than 365 days with provision as of December 31, 2021.
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42, Adoption of new and revised Standards

da.

New and a ndards that are effecti he current year:

The following new and revised TFRSs, which became effective for annual periods
beginning on or after January 1, 2021, have been adopted in these consolidated
financial statements. The application of these revised IFRSs has not had any
material impact on the amounts reported for the current and prior years but may
affect the accounting for future transactions or arrangements.

Interest Rate Benchmark Reform

In the prior year, the Company adopted the Phase 1 amendments Interest Rate
Benchmark Reform—Amendments to IFRS 9/IAS 39 and IFRS 7. These
amendments modify specific hedge accounting requirements to allow hedge
accounting to continue for affected hedges during the period of uncertainty before
the hedged items or hedging instruments are amended as a result of the interest
rate benchmark reform.

In the current year, the Company adopted the Phase 2 amendments Interest Rate
Benchmark Reform—Amendments to IFRS 9, IAS 39, IFRS 7, IFRS 4 and IFRS 16.
Adopting these amendments enables the Company to reflect the effects of
transitioning from interbank offered rates (IBOR) to alternative benchmark interest
rates (also referred to as 'risk free rates’ or RFRs) without giving rise to accounting
impacts that would not provide useful information to users of financial statements.

The amendments also introduce new disclosure requirements to IFRS 7 for hedging
relationships that are subject to the exceptions intreduced by the amendments to
1FRS 9,

The was no material impact on the amounts reported for the current year for both
the Phase 1 and Phase 2 amendments as the Company does not have material
financial instruments linked to IBOR.

COVID-19-Related Rent Concessions beyond June 30, 2021 - Amendment to IFRS
16

In the prior year, the Company early adopted Covid-19-Related Rent Concessions
(Amendment to IFRS 16) that provided practical relief to lessees in accounting for
rent concessions occurring as a direct consequence of COVID-19, by Introducing a
practical expedient to IFRS 16, This practical expedient was available to rent
concessions for which any reduction in lease payments affected payments originally
due on or before June 30, 2021.

In March 2021, the Board issued Covid-19-Related Rent Concessions beyond June
30, 2021 {(Amendment to IFRS 16) that extends the practical expedient to apply to
reduction in lease payments originally due on aor before June 30, 2022.

The practical expedient permits a lessee to elect not to assess whether a COVID-
19-related rent concession is a lease modification. A lessee that makes this election
shall account for any change in lease payments resulting from the COVID-19-
related rent concession applying IFRS 16 as if the change were not a lease
maodification.

The practical expedient applies only to rent concessions occurring as a direct

consequence of COVID-19 and only if all of the following conditions are met:

. The change in lease payments results in revised consideration for the lease
that is substantially the same as, or less than, the censideration for the lease
immediately preceding the change.

] Any reduction in lease payments affects only payments originally due on or
before 30 June 2022 (a rent concession meets this condition if it results in
reduced lease payments on or before 30 June 2022 and Increased |ease
payments that extend beyond 30 June 2022).

. There is no substantive change to other terms and conditions of the lease
The adoption has not had any material impact on the disclosures or on the
amounts reported in these consolidated financial statements as the Company
did not have any leases impacted by the amendment.
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: New and Revised Standards in issue but no effecti
At the date of authorization of these consolidated financial statements, the
Company has not applied the following new and revised IFRS Standards that have
been issued but are not yet effective:

New and revised IFRSs ~ Effective date

IFRS 17 Insurance Contracts (including the June 2020 The amendments
amendments to IFRS 17) are applied
IFRS 17 establishes the principles for the recognition, retrospectively for
measurement, presentation and disclosure of insurance annual pericds
contracts and supersedes IFRS 4 Insurance Contracts. beginning on or

after January 1,
IFRS 17 outlines a general model, which is modified for 2023, unless

insurance contracts with direct participation features, described imprecticable, in
as the variable fee approach. The general model Is simplified if which case the
certain criteria are met by measuring the liability for remaining modified

coverage using the premium allocation approach. retrospective
approach or the

The general model uses current assumptions to estimate the fair value

amount, timing and uncertainty of fulure cash flows and it approach is

explicitly measures the cost of that uncertainty. It takes into applied.
account market interest rates and the impact of policyholders’
opticns and guarantaes.

In June 2020, the Board issued Amendments to IFRS 17 to
address concerns and implementation challenges that were
|dentified after IFRS 17 was published. The amendments defer
the date of initial application of IFRS 17 (incorporating the
amendments) to annual reporting periods beginning on or after
January 1, 2023. At the same time, the Board Issued Extension
of the Temporary Exemption from Applying IFRS 9
(Amendments to IFRS 4) that extends the fixed expiry date of
the temparary exemption from applying IFRS 9 in IFRS 4 to
annual reporting periods beginning on or after January 1, 2023.

For the purpose of the transition requirements, the date of
initial application is the start of the annual reporting period In
which the entity first applies the Standard, and the transition
date Is the beginning of the period immediately preceding the
date of initial application.

Amendments to IFRS 10 and IAS 28 - Sale or Contribution of The effective date
Assets between an Investor and its Associate or Joint Venture s yet to be set
The amendments to IFRS 10 and IAS 28 deal with situations Earlier application
where there is a sale or contribution of assets between an is permitted,
investor and Its associate or joint venture. Specifically, the

amendments state that gains or losses resulting from the loss

of control of a subsidiary that does not contain a business in a

transaction with an associate or a joint venture that is

accounted for using the equity method, are recognized in the

parent’s profit or loss only to the extent of the unrelated

investors’ interests in that associate or joint venture. Similarly,

gains and losses resuiting from the remeasurement of

investments retained in any former subsidiary (that has

become an associate or a joint venture that is accounted for

using the equity method) to fair value are recognized in the

former parent’s profit or loss only to the extent of the

unrelated investors’ interests in the new associate or joint

venture.
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New and revised IFRSs

Effective date

Amendments to IAS 1 Presentation of Financial Statements —
Classification of Liabilities as Current or Non-current

The amendments to IAS 1 affect only the presentation of
liahilities as current or non-current in the statement of financial
position and not the amount or timing of recegnition of any
asset, liability, income or expenses, or the information
disclosed about those items,

The amendments clarify that the classification of liabilities as
current or noncurrent is based on rights that are in existence
at the end of the reporting period, specify that classification is
unaffected by expectations about whether an entity will
exercise its right to defer settlernent of a liability, explain that
rights are in existence if covenants are complied with at the
end of the reporting period, and introduce a definition of
‘settlement’ to make clear that settlement refers to the
transfer to the counterparty of cash, equity instruments, other
assets or services,

Amendments to IFRS 3 Business Combinations — Reference to
the Conceptual Framewaork

The amendments update IFRS 3 so that it refers to the 2018
Conceptual Framework instead of the 1989 Framework. They
also add to IFRS 3 a requirement that, for obligations within
the scope of IAS 37, an acquirer applies IAS 37 to determine
whether at the acquisition date a present obligation exists as a
result of past events. For a levy that would be within the scope
of IFRIC 21 Levies, the acquirer applies IFRIC 21 to determine
whether the obligating event that gives rise to a liability to pay
the levy has occurred by the acquisition date.

Finally, the amendments add an explicit statement that an
acquirer does not recognize contingent assets acquired in a
business combination.

Amendments to IAS 16 - Property, Plant and Eguipment—
Proceeds befure Intended Use

The amendments prohibit deducting from the cost of an item of
property, plant and equipment any proceeds from selling items
produced before that asset is available for use, i.e. proceeds
while bringing the asset to the location and conditicn necessary
for it to be capable of operating in the manner intended by
management. Consequently, an entity recognizes such sales
proceeds and related costs in profit or loss. The entity
measures the cost of those iterns in accordance with IAS 2
Inventories
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Mew and ravised IFRSs

Effective date

The amendments also clarify the meaning of ‘testing whether
an asset Is functioning properly’. TAS 16 now specifies this as
assessing whether the technical and physical performance of
the asset is such that it is capable of being used in the
production or supply of goods or services, for rental to others,
or for administrative purposes.

If not presented separately in the statement of comprehensive
income, the financial statements shall disclose the amounts of
proceeds and cost included in profit or loss that relate to items
produced that are not an output of the entity's ordinary
activities, and which line item(s) in the statement of
comprehensive income include(s) such proceeds and cost.

The amendments are applied retrospectively, but oanly to items
of property, plant and equipment that are brought to the
location and condition necessary for them to be capable of
operating in the manner intended by management on or after
the beginning of the earliest period presented in the financial
statements in which the entity first applies the amendments,
The entity shall recognize the cumulative effect of initially
applying the amendments as an adjustment to the opening
balance of retained earnings (or other component of equity, as
appropriate) at the beginning of that earliest period presented.

Amendments to [AS 37 - Onerous Contracts—Cost of Fulfilling
a Contract

The amendments specify that the 'cost of fulfilling” @ contract
comprises the ‘costs that relate directly to the contract’. Costs
that relate directly to a contract consist of both the incremental
costs of fulfilling that contract (examples would be direct labor
or materials) and an allocation of other costs that relate
directly to fulfilling contracts (an example would be the
allocation of the depreciation charge for an item of property,
plant and equipment used in fulfilling the contract).

The amendments apply to contracts for which the entity has
not yet fulfilled all its obligations at the beginning of the annual
reporting period in which the entity first applies the
amendments. Comparatives are not restated. Instead, the
entity shall recognize the cumulative effect of initially applying
the amendments as an adjustment te the epening balance of
retained earnings or other component of equity, as appropriate,
at the date of initial application.

Annual Improvements to IFRS Standards 2018-2020
Amendments to IFRS 1 First-time Adoption of International
Financial Reporting Standards

The amendment provides additional relief to a subsidiary which
becomes a first-time adopter later than its parent in respect of
accounting for cumulative translation differences. As a result of
the amendment, a subsidiary that uses the exemption in IFRS
1:D16 (a) can now also elect to measure cumulative translation
differences for all foreign operations at the carrying amount
that would be included In the parent’s consolidated financial
statements, based on the parent’'s date of transition to IFRS
Standards, if no adjustments were made for consolidation
procedures and for the effects of the business combination in
which the parent acquired the subsidiary. A similar election is
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MNew and revised IFRSs

Effective date

available to an associate or joint wventure that uses the
exemption in IFRS 1:216 (a).

IFRS 9 Financial Instruments

The amendment clarifies that in applying the 10 per cent’ test
to assess whether to derecognize a financial liability, an entity
includes only fees paid or received between the entity (the
borrower) and the lender, including fees paid or received by
either the entity or the lender on the other's behalf.

The amendment is applied prospectively to modifications and
exchanges that occur on or after the date the entity first
applies the amendment.

IFRS 16 [eases
The amendment removes the illustration of the reimbursement
of leasehold improvements,

TAS 41 Agriculture

The amendment removes the requirement in IAS 41 for entities
to exclude cash flows for taxation when measuring fair value.
This aligns the fair value measurement in IAS 41 with the
requirements of IFRS 13 Fair Value Measurement to use
internally consistent cash flows and discount rates and enables
preparers to determine whether to use pretax or post-tax cash
flows and discount rates for the most appropriate fair value
measuremeant.

The amendment is applied prospectively, i.e. for fair value
measurements on or after the date an entity initially applies
the amendment.

Amendments to IAS 1 Presentation of Financial Statements and
IFRS Practice Statement 2 Making Materiality Judgements -
Disclosure of Accounting Policies

The amendments change the requirements In 1AS 1 with regard
to disclosure of accounting policies. The amendments replace
all instances of the term ‘significant accounting policies” with
‘'material accounting policy information’. Accounting policy
information is material if, when considered together with other
information included In an entity’s financial statements, it can
reasonably be expected to influence decisions that the primary
users of general purpose financial statements make on the
basis of those financial statements.

The supporting paragraphs in IAS 1 are also amended to clarify
that accounting policy information that relates to immaterial
transactions, other events or conditions is immaterial and need
not be disclosed. Accounting policy information may be
material because of the nature of the related transactions,
other events or conditions, even if the amounts are immaterial.
However, not all accounting policy information relating to
material transactions, other events or conditions is itself
material.

The Board has also developed guidance and examples to
explain and demonstrate the application of the ‘four-step
materiality process’ described in IFRS Practice Statement 2.
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New and revised IFRSs Effective date

Amendments to IAS 8 Accounting Policies, Changes In Accounting Estimates January 1, 24043,
and Errors - Definition of Accounting Estimates with earlier
The amendments replace the definition of a change in accounting estimates application
with a definition of accounting estimates. Under the new definition, permitted
accounting estimates are "monetary amounts in financial statements that are
subject to measuremnent uncertainty”.
The definition of a change in accounting estimates was deleted. However, the
Board retained the concept of changes in accounting estimates in the
Standard with the following clarifications:
« A change in accounting estimate that results from new information or

new developments is not the correction of an error
= The effects of a change in an input or a measurement technique used to

develop an accounting estimate are changes in accounting estimates If

they do not result from the correction of prior period errors
The Board added two examples (Examples 4-5) to the Guidance on
implementing 1AS 8, which accompanies the Standard. The Board has deleted
one example (Example 3) as it could cause confusion in light of the
amendments.
Amendments to IAS 12 Income Taxes - Deferred Tax related to Assets and January 1, 2023,
Liahilities arising from a Single Transaction. with earlier

application

The amendments introduce a further exception from the initial recognition permitted

exemption. Under the amendments, an entity does not apply the initial
recognition exemption for transactions that give rise to equal taxable and
deductible temporary differences.

Depending on the applicable tax law, equal taxable and deductible temporary
differences may arise on initial recognition of an asset and liability in a
transaction that is not a business combination and affects neither accounting
nor taxable profit. For example, this may arise upon recognition of a lease
liability and the corresponding right-of-use asset applying IFRS 16 at the
commencement date of a lease.

Following the amendments to TIAS 12, an entity is required to recognise the
related deferred tax asset and liability, with the recognition of any deferred
tax asset being subject to the recoverability criteria in TAS 12.

The Board also adds an illustrative example to IAS 12 that explains how the
amendments are applied.

The amendments apply to transactions that occur on or after the beginning
of the earliest comparative period presented. In addition, at the beginning of
the earliest comparative period an entity recognises:
o A deferred tax asset (to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit
will be available against which the deductible temporary difference can be
utilised) and a deferred tax liability for all deductible and taxable
temporary differences associated with:
Right-of-use assets and lease liabilities

- Decommissioning, restoration and similar llabilities and the
corresponding amounts recognised as part of the cost of the related
asset

s The cumulative effect of initially applying the amendments as an
adjustment to the opening balance of retained earnings (or other
component of equity, as appropriate) at that date.

Management anticipates that these new standards, interpretations and amendments will be
adopted in the Company’s consolidated financial statements as and when they are applicable and
adoption of these new standards, interpretations and amendments, may have no material impact
on the consolidated financial statements of the Company in the period of initial application.

. Dividend distributed to shareholders
The Company's general assembly approved the recommendation of the Company's board of
directors at its meeting hold on January 17, 2022, to distribute dividends of JD 800,000

representing 10% of the nominal value of profit related to the year 2021.
- 62 -



